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Corporate Information

NEER
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Corporate Information ® 2 5] & #}
As at 31 December 2022
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Corporate Structure

NCIEY

Shareholders
RRE

Board of Directors

EET

[ [

| |

Audit Remuneration Investment and Nomination
Committee Committee Risk Management Committee
EREEE FNEES Committee REEES

Chief Executive Officer
BEHITE

REREBEREZEES

[ [

1 |

President Vice President Company Chief Financial
RE B Secretary Officer
NEME BEEMBE

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t =B (ZR)BR AT



Financial Summary

MBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—EF-N\E —T-hF —T-TF T —F ZB-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FH&T FAT FHET FHT T
Revenue WA 178,885 200,755 149,887 203,776 166,484
(Loss)/profit for the year [SYNGIEZ 2PN T
attributable to the FE(EBR),/HEF
owners of the parent 43,450 (422,394) (185,324) (39,410) (97,696)
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—F-N\F —T-hF —T-TF _—T-_—F ZB-Z-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FA&T FHET AT FHEx
Assets and liabilities EEKAE
Total assets BEE 3,752,718 3,064,568 2,808,613 2,837,960 2,415,431
Total liabilities HEE (619,673) (489,452) (317,573) (341,341) (271,771)
3,133,045 2,575,116 2,491,040 2,496,619 2,143,660
Equity attributable to [SUNGIE 2PN
owners of the parent R 2,847 967 2,366,031 2,281,838 2,293,624 2,037,238
Non-controlling interests ~ JEIZEAR#Ea 285,078 209,085 209,202 202,995 106,422
3,133,045 2,575,116 2,491,040 2,496,619 2,143,660
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the "Year") of Beijing Health (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”) to the shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) of the Company.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

In 2022, the Group's loss for the year increased to HK$98,805,000 (2021:
HK$40,234,000), and the consolidated revenue was approximately
HK$166,484,000, decreased by 18% when compared to the corresponding
period in 2021. As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents and
other rapidly realisable investments (mainly referring to financial products
of banks) amounted to approximately HK$420 million (31 December
2021: HK$470 million). In line with the Group's long-standing prudent
practice, the gearing ratio has always been kept at a low level.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, China’s economy was still under the impacts of the novel
coronavirus pandemic. Benefiting from its comprehensive pandemic
prevention and control measures, the overall economy in China began
to pick up steadily in the second half of the year. The Group has actively
responded to the shocks on the domestic economic operation arising
from the pandemic. With the support of various stakeholders, the Group
continues to staunchly adhere to the strategy of “pursuing progress
while achieving stability”, strives to focus on its principal businesses,
and strictly controls business risks in order to maintain stability in its
performance.

Geriatric Care Business

The Group focused on the development of general and economical
geriatric care institutions in the Yangtze River Delta region in accordance
with its formulated plan. However, due to the impacts of the novel
coronavirus pandemic, the Group did not add any new beds during
the year. By the end of 2022, the Group operated five geriatric care
institutions with a total of 1,055 beds, which included 734 medical beds
provided by three medical institutions, and the average occupancy
rate continued to increase. The average occupancy rate of the well-
established projects reached over 90%. The geriatric care business of
the Group has achieved a break-even position and continued to provide
positive cash flow for the Group. With the relaxation of the pandemic
prevention and control measures in China, the Group will accelerate the
development of its geriatric care business and expects to increase the
number of beds by 1,000 in the coming year.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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Chairman’s Statement ® & /& &

Health Industrial Park Business

In respect of the Health Industrial Park, since the development of various
projects requires a considerable amount of resources, after considering
the current operating environment and balancing the risks and benefits
of the projects this year, the Group focused its resources to drive the
government's approval of the projects. Therefore, enhanced the value
of the projects and attracted appropriate partners jointly develop the
project so as to achieve a win-win situation of mutual benefits.

Sales Business of Medical and Geriatric Products

The operating revenue of the sales business of the Group’s medical and
geriatric decreased by 19% year-on-year to HK$157,854,000. As of 31
December 2022, the contracted but undelivered amount in relation to
the sales business of medical and geriatric products reached HK$168
million, thereby laying a solid foundation for the performance of the
Group in coming years.

PROSPECT

The ageing situation in China is becoming increasingly serious and
shows a growing trend, which brings good market opportunities for the
Group's business development. The Group focuses on the development
of the geriatric care business through integration of medical and geriatric
care with the support of related industries such as geriatric care related
furniture and comprehensive hospitals, so as to actively deploy the
business configuration of the whole aging industrial chain and strive to
become a benchmark enterprise in the geriatric care industry in China.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, the
management and all staff, and to express my heartfelt gratitude to all
colleagues for their hard work and contribution to the development
of the Group in the past year. Meanwhile, | would also like to express
appreciation to all shareholders, our friends in the banking and
investment sectors, and our business partners for their full confidence in
and strong support of the Group.
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hREREEZERBNETESR - N RRAEF
BEEETENIFEDRE -

U]
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B W DA

BUSINESS REVIEW

Geriatric Care Business

Riding on the trend of ageing population in the Chinese society and
the rigid market demand, the Group strived to develop bed space
of geriatric care institutions and continued to explore the extended
industry. Currently, the Group has maintained in-depth deployment in
Yangtze River Delta region, which has stronger economic power and
greater market demand, and gradually expanded to the entire PRC. As
for the operating strategy, the Group adheres to the strategy of focusing
on integrated medical and geriatric care, utilizing medical measures to
assist the development of geriatric care and utilizing geriatric care to
facilitate medical development, with an aim to develop geriatric care
institutions that are professional, chain managed and with temperature.
In order to ensure the sustainability of our business, the Group has also
enlarged the professional talent pool to enrich the human resources for
future development and ensure the stable development of business.

The bed space occupancy rate of the Group’s geriatric care institutions
was stable. The operation model of focusing on integrated medical and
geriatric care advocated by the Group effectively resisted the impact
brought by COVID-19 pandemic and has been widely recognized by
the market. The nursing homes operated by the Group have obtained
official medical qualifications and are equipped with a series of medical
supporting services such as doctors, nurses, pharmacies, oxygen supply,
testing and rehabilitation. These medical services provide timely and
effective medical treatment services for the elderly. During the year, we
enhanced our marketing efforts and launched marketing activities such
as free stay experience, oxygen inhalation, rehabilitation therapy. The
number of customer inquiries has surged, and the occupancy rate has
risen rapidly. Customers are very satisfied with the Group's services of
focusing on integrated medical and geriatric care.

During the year, the Group operated 5 geriatric care institutions with a
total of 1,055 beds (mainly in the Yangtze River Delta region), including
a total of 734 beds for medical care services in 3 medical institutions.
During the year, the average occupancy rate of beds for geriatric care
services reached 70% and the operating revenue reached RMB38.00
million™ (2021: RMB32.35 million”), representing a year-on-year increase
of 17.5%.

A

This revenue included the revenue from the private non-enterprise entities which
were founded by the Group's subsidiaries
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Management Discussion and Analysis ®

Brief Description of Geriatric Care Project

1.

Wuxi Liangxi District Guangyi Geriatric Care Center and Fuma
Nursing Home

First established in July 1983, included in Projects Benefiting
the People in 2009 and the total investment made by the local
government for reconstruction amounted to over RMB40 million.
The residential institution has a built-up area of about 20 acres
and total gross floor area of about 10,000 sg.m.. The residential
institution has double qualification of geriatric care center and
nursing home. It was honored with provincial and municipal
demonstrative geriatric care institutions and advanced unit
consecutively for many years.

- Opening Date: 2015

- Number of beds: 285, of which 214 beds are for medical care
service

- Occupancy rate: 97%

Wuxi Liangxi District Wuhe Geriatric Care Center and Yikang
Nursing Home

Established in 2012, the project is situated at Block C, 20 Antou
Qiao, Wuxi. It has a gross floor area of approximately 3,500 sg.m.
and has double qualification of geriatric care center and nursing
home. The center has set up function rooms such as chess room,
reading room, studio, rehabilitation room.

- Opening Date: December 2018

- Number of beds: 160, of which 120 beds are for medical care
service

- Occupancy rate: 92%

Changzhou Xinbei District Xuejia Aixin Nursing Home

The institution is situated at the centre of Xuejiazhen, Xinbei
District, Changzhou with a gross floor area of approximately
12,500 sq.m.. It has a green area of approximately 6,200 sg.m..
There are two buildings, the southern block has 3 floors and the
northern block has 4 floors. The residential institution has double
qualification of geriatric care center and nursing home.

- Opening Date: June 2020

- Number of beds: 400, of which 400 beds are for medical care
service

- Occupancy rate: 30%
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Management Discussion and Analysis ®

4. Wuxi Liangxi District Huifeng Yikangyuan
The institution was built in April 2005. The Group took over in 2017
and carried out renovation and alteration. The gross floor area
was 2,400 sg.m.. Green coverage reached 60%. The residential
institution has set up function rooms such as chess room, reading
room, studio and gym room. The outdoor garden provides
sufficient space for the elders.

- Opening Date: December 2017
- Number of beds: 100
- Occupancy rate: 92%

5. Wuhu Jinghu District Elderly Care Centre
The institution is situated at 3-1 land parcel, Century City, Jinghu
District, Wuhu city. It was converted from Jinghu District Old-
age University with a gross area of 3,300 sq.m.. The residential
institution provides services such as long term and short term
foster care, day care and respite care. Meanwhile, it provides home
health care social services to the nearby areas.

- Opening Date: August 2018
- Number of beds: 110
- Occupancy rate: 92%

Health Industrial Park Business

The Group acquired land parcels of high-quality mainly in first-tier cities
such as Beijing and Shanghai based on the policies and directions on
land planning adjustments of central and local governments. Leveraging
on the transformation and upgrading, the Group introduced advanced
industrial construction philosophy to fully satisfy the needs of the
government and market users with the focus being placed on new
modes of business operations such as setting up corporate headquarters
and healthcare industrial parks.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group participated in six projects in total in
Beijing, Shanghai, Dali and Canada with a total site area of over 400,000
sg.m.. The implementation plans of each of the projects have gained
support from the local governments where the projects are located. As
the projects are positioned in line with the market demand, it is expected
that the projects will have considerable potential for appreciation in
commercial value.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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Management Discussion and Analysis ® & & 5 7w B2 547

As of 31 December 2022, the progress of the Group's projects under

BE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—0 K&EE#%

development as follows: BEERNAT
Shareholding
Location  Project Name Land Area Percentage  Future Planning of the Project Project Status
wH HEEH TiER REhEL BERRRE HEER
(m?)
(FAK)
Beijing Chaoyang Port Project 87,607 82.24% The Group facilitated the inclusion of ~ The preparation of relevant documents
IR HHORES Chaoyang Port Project, which is positioned as such as "Report on Project Planning and
the intelligent cold chain distribution center ~ Operation Proposal” and the inclusion of
in Chaoyang Port of Beijing, into the key  relevant documents such as "Combination
projects of Beijing with an aim to develop  of Multiple Rules into One” was completed.
a benchmark demonstration project for ~ The report has been accepted by the
intelligent cold chain in Beijing Chaoyang District Commission of Planning
E[EEGEOFRELEET 0] WA and Natural Resources for approval. The
URHERER - TELRHEELEEET  Group is actively seeking local demolition
#IER targets and will apply to the government
for construction targets and proceed with
the development of the project once the
demolition targets are obtained.
BRR(EERELELHREEIRANE
R BEXHOREIE  ZRECES
AERRANEAERZE X EENS
i ARELRESHERHRESR  FK
FRBEREET AR R BRREGRE
EBRNFRE -
Quality partners have been reserved for this
project, which include investors, operators
and tenants.
EATERRBEREAET  Hhak &
By BEHREES -
Shanghai Sanlu Road Project 20,480 20%  This project has been completed as a new  Properties are recruiting tenants.
b —ERER industrial park and is recruiting tenants nERHEES
TARERRAHYEXET HIMTRES D
Shanghai  Hongmei Road Project 39,448 100%  This project is strategically located in the  The Group initiated the adjustment of
k! iIER core area of Shanghai. The Group intends to  project positioning and design plan during

bring in quality partners to jointly develop
this project as a landmark for leasing projects
in the region
RERR HETORE  wEAEEY &
SERSINBEAEN HAREAER RER
RERRE

the year in accordance with the changes in
market and policies.
AEEREMSRERNEL  REREFEH
BEEREN R TR

Quality partners have been reserved.

TIRBE AR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis ® & & 5 7w B2 547

Shareholding
Location  Project Name Land Area Percentage Future Planning of the Project Project Status
bk HAER TEE R BRERRRE HRER
(m?)
(FAK)
Dali Haidong New District 275,181 60%  Greater health industrial park complex  As the Yunnan provincial government
N Project including lands for residential, commercial  suspended its approval process for the
ARHMEER and medical purposes development and construction in Haidong
ARREXEGAE  RFELE BERBEE  New District, this project is temporarily
R withheld.
MRERERNECEL ERFERER
R FARERERELRE -
The Group is discussing with the local
government on the follow-up arrangements.
ARE RO B L -
Canada Royal Tower 10,588 47.47%  Urban health apartments We are preparing the application of
JIEYN BHRELE replanning the nature of project land
development, and seeking appropriate
partners.
FASRER DHERLEIENRETE
BBRAELZAMER «
Canada Ovation 2425 N/AD Artistic health apartments The pre-sale of this project began in
JIEYN TERY BRRAS April 2019, and approximately 70% of the

saleable area were sold currently. The units
are expected to be delivered to buyers
within 2023.
AERE-ET-NENAREE BAIRE
AT EEENT0% - BAR-F-=FRR
NELTER

Note™:  This project is engaged in the form of debt investment.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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Management Discussion and Analysis ®

Sale of Medical and Geriatric Products
During the year, Beumg Vissam Prosperity Furniture Limited* (3t 5 {& %

BEREERA

engaging in medical and geriatric product business, continued to

("Vissam Prosperity”), a company under the Group

penetrate into the specialized furniture industry in areas such as
education, geriatric care and medical. In the face of the unfavorable
conditions of different degrees of COVID-19 pandemic occurring in
different parts of the country in 2022, which seriously affected the overall
sales of the industry, Vissam Prosperity timely adjusted its sales strategy,
adapted to the pandemic period and geographical characteristics, took
advantage of the stable pandemic situation in various places for market
development, understood national policies, quickly followed up the
changes and impacts of policies on the market, and deeply understood
and investigated the implementation of subsidized loan policies for
universities in various regions. By strengthening multi-departmental
collaboration and cooperation based on the projects in hand, Vissam
Prosperity has been able to maintain stable overall sales, won the tenders
and obtained high quality customers such as South China University of
Technology, Peking University, Shanxi Medical University, University of
International Business and Economics, Shanghai Jiao Tong University,
Wanjiang College and Beijing Information Science and Technology
University. During the year, the number of project completion was stable,
with high effectiveness in customer maintenance and development.

Focusing on independent research and development, Vissam Prosperity
has successfully obtained four patents, namely “Classroom Chair
Appearance Design Patent”, “Classroom Desk Appearance Design
Patent”, "Folding Row Chair Appearance Design Patent” and “Utility
Model Patent for Gravity-sensitive Functional Casters For Geriatric Care

Related Seats”.

Meanwhile, Vissam Prosperity actively participated in compilation of the
group standard of “General Technical Requirements for Geriatric Care
Related Furniture” in the industry as well as the compilation and revision
of the national standard GB24820-2009 “General Technical Requirements
for Laboratory Furniture”, and successfully completed the annual
inspection of China Environmental Protection Certification System, Three
Standards Management System Certification, China Environmental
Labeling Product Certification, Ergonomic Product Certification, and
After-sales Management System Certification. In addition, processing of
quality product safety certification, corporate credit rating certificate (AAA
grade credit enterprise) certificate was added during the year.

*  For identification purpose only
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Adhering to the purpose of repaying the society and enhancing people’s
welfare, the company strived to create and protect a healthy and
intelligent life, and actively participated in social public welfare activities.
In November 2022, it helped the revitalization of the countryside by
donating office equipment to the Beijing Yanging Dayushu Beihongmen
Village Committee, in December 2022, it made a cash donation to the
Dongrun Charity Foundation.

As of 31 December 2022, Vissam Prosperity signed sales contracts of
approximately HK$168,264,000. Sales revenue for 2022 amounted to
HK$157,854,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 19% from 2021.

FUTURE PROSPECT

Economic activity is expected to resume gradually as the COVID-19
pandemic was gradually brought under control with community lock-
down measures lifted, but the short-term business environment is still
characterized by many uncertainties. Under the complex and changing
environment, we will continue to focus on the development of our
industry, promote innovation and expand market share.

In respect of geriatric care services, we will continue to adhere to the
operation model of focusing on integrated medical and geriatric care,
improve occupancy rates and project profitability, and increase bed
expansion, aiming to add 1,000 beds in 2023.

In respect of health industrial park, since the strengthening of the
regulation of the real estate industry in China in 2021, the domestic real
estate industry has been under tremendous pressure of highly indebted.
Fortunately, the Group has always maintained a stable development
policy with a low debt ratio and has not been greatly impacted by this
industry wave. However, as this is an asset-heavy business, the Group
will not increase its deployment on health industrial park for the time
being as the macro-environment was unclear and the control on Chinese
real estate enterprises was tightened. Through actively pushing forward
government approval procedure and completing the preparation work
before construction, the Group is expected to facilitate the positioning of
Chaoyang Port of Beijing as the intelligent cold chain distribution center
in 2023, with an aim to develop a benchmark demonstration project for
intelligent cold chain in Beijing and to obtain approval in the coming
year to enhance project value.

In respect of medical and geriatric product business, 2023 is the first
year of returning to normal. The impact of pandemic on the furniture
market has been greatly reduced, the market is fully open, and it is
expected that the furniture industry will experience a round of retaliatory
purchases. We will increase participation in offline exhibitions, brand
promotion and market development to prepare for the sustainable
development of the company in all aspects of the market and strive to
stand out from the peers.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

ARFAERUEE - WEREBUOTE - BH
AlEMTEERESEAE  BHRLELGANE
B —T - —Ft+— A NHSMIRERIL mRHT
BABBILAPINZ S RERARE  — ==
FH_AmEEAZESSREEE -

BE-_Z-_—#+-A=+—01F BHR%C
FEWE AR S EH68,264,00087T » —Z
— S E & WA 157,854,000/ 70 B F
Z—FRLFEA19% o

AREE
BEHBRBEZFRERMRES @ KEEHE
PR AIRE - ERRERHRRIDEERES TR
Az - EEMZENRET @ BAGEERER
EMER - BRI MBS o

BERBIE  BMASEERSEBEES 1KY
B BAANEERIAR RS - INAKALIA
& NFE T =FFE1,0005R KA -

REEXEFE BT —FEREMETE
MAREER  BAMETEEHESBENERE
N—BERERE  LEAER -—MRARBEX
WIRRERTEH  RAXIRRITEERKAK
TE - BARTEBREEERR  EREBRR
T RBEAEFEBEDKAEMEOERT -
AEBE TG MARRBEELRERNRA - B =
Zo=F AEEBEEREELSBLERX
PORMERERE A F BB BUFSEILT4& - 4
MR TR EE TR - IS R R B #NERR
REIRA  BRRRFRSELBEBREARBE
=

BEREREBHE —ZE=FRETHTE -
KEMEXRBEFENERD - THEEMA
FEAHRETERS LR —HmBEXRE - LK
BNETREAPNZE  ETTmMEF LTS
% ARRAFEENERBEMSETLN
Bl JRRFEITHBAM H o



Management Discussion and Analysis ®

In respect of the Group's overall strategy, we will exercise stringent cost
control and optimize cost efficiency by putting resources to good use.
We will manage our own capital prudently and enhance our financial
position by increasing free cash income through appropriate investments
in wealth management products, equity and bonds.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

Other than the net amount of wealth management products in rolling
purchases from banks of approximately HK$16,440,000 as idle cash
management, the Group had no additional material investment for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
The Group did not have any major acquisitions and disposals for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating revenue

As of 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$166,484,000 (2021: HK$203,776,000), representing a decrease of 18%
as compared to 2021, mainly due to a slight decrease in orders for the
Group's medical and geriatric products as the COVID-19 pandemic in
China became more serious in the first half of the year and strict closures
were imposed in many cities, as well as the Group's initiative to reduce
orders from real estate customers to mitigate the risk of bad debts.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales was approximately HK$119,972,000, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 23%. Cost of sales mainly includes cost of purchases,
freight, installation fees and wage expenses.

Gross profit margin

During the year, the overall gross profit margin of the Group was 27.9%,
representing a slight increase of 4.8% as compared to 23.1% for the
corresponding period last year, mainly due to the Group's initiative to
adjust its product and customer mix to reduce orders from real estate
customers with lower gross profit margin and increase orders from
customers in the education industry with higher profit margin, such as the
new orders from a number of universities this year. As a result, the Group
still recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$46,512,000 despite the
decrease in sales for the year.

Other income and gains, net

As of 31 December 2022, other income and gains was approximately
HK$36,864,000, representing a decrease of 44.5% as compared to
HK$66,447,000 in 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the reversal
of impairment loss on investment in an associate of approximately
HK$26,449,000 incurred in 2021, while no gain on reversal of impairment
incurred in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis ®

Excluding the above reversal of impairment gains, other income and
gains mainly included bank interest, other interest, dividend and
investment income of HK$27,503,000 (2021: HK$36,622,000), rental
income of HK$12,439,000 (2021: HK$9,174,000), gain on exchange
differences of HK$nil (2021: HK$4,034,000), gain on redemption of
debt investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
of HK$4,375,000 (2021: nil), fair value loss on investment properties of
HK$4,879,000 (2021: HK$2,409,000) and impairment on fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$6,972,000 (2021:
HK$3,473,000).

Selling and distribution expenses

As of 31 December 2022, the selling and distribution expenses of the
Group were approximately HK$14,555,000 (2021: HK$13,783,000),
representing 8.7% of the total sales amount (2021: 6.8%).

The selling and distribution expenses mainly comprise of remuneration
of HK$5,592,000 (2021: HK$6,558,000), travelling expenses of
HK$628,000 (2021: HK$1,383,000), promotion fee of HK$2,237,000 (2021:
HK$1,721,000) and license fees of HK$2,740,000 (2021: HK$820,000). The
increase of HK$772,000 in selling and distribution expenses was mainly
due to the adjustment of product and customer structure of the Group
during the year, the increase in proportion of sales of licensed products,
resulting in an increase in license fees.

Administrative expenses

As of 31 December 2022, the administrative expenses were
HK$97,402,000, representing a decrease of 18.2% in expenses as
compared to HK$119,095,000 in 2021.

The administrative expenses mainly include staff costs (excluding
Directors’ remuneration) of HK$36,182,000 (2021: HK$38,027,000),
professional advisory fees of HK$8,211,000 (2021: HK$12,626,000), office
expenses of HK$3,864,000 (2021: HK$5,940,000), depreciation and
amortization costs of HK$25,073,000 (2021: HK$33,389,000), business
entertainment expenses of HK$3,132,000 (2021: HK$3,794,000), travelling
expenses of HK$2,702,000 (2021: HK$3,282,000), lease expenses of
HK$982,000 (2021: HK$998,000) and maintenance fee of HK$526,000
(2021: HK$8,425,000).

The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to
a one-off maintenance fee of HK$8,425,000 incurred in 2021 and a
decrease in depreciation expense as the Group's offices in Beijing were
leased out and reclassified as investment properties in the second half of
2021.
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Impairment losses of financial assets

Impairment losses of financial assets were mainly attributable to the
provision for impairment of the Group’s receivables, other receivables
and bond investments. Part of the other receivables failed to be repaid
on schedule during the year as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak
during the year. The Group had made a provision for impairment on
the affected balance, taking into consideration the repayment ability of
defaulters.

Other expenses and losses

Other expenses and losses were mainly attributable to the one-off
expenses without cash outflow. As of 31 December 2022, the other
expenses and losses of the Group was HK$19,066,000, representing an
increase of approximately HK$18,868,000 from HK$198,000 for 2021.

The increase in other expenses and losses was mainly due to the
depreciation of CAD by approximately 6% in 2022, leading to the loss
on exchange differences of the Group of approximately HK$18,021,000
(2021: gain on exchange differences recorded in other income and gains,
net of HK$4,034,000).

Finance cost

As of 31 December 2022, the total finance cost of the Group was
approximately HK$1,442,000 (2021: HK$2,066,000), representing a
decrease of 30.2% as compared to the corresponding period last year,
which was mainly due to a decrease in the weighted average borrowing
balance of the Group for the year.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures were mainly the share
of 50% of loss attributable to shareholders of Beijing Enterprises
Fuyu Information Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. of approximately
HK$520,000, as well as the share of 47.47% of loss attributable to
shareholders of 1121695 B.C. Ltd. of approximately HK$18,308,000.

Share of profits and losses of associates

Share of profits and losses of associates mainly included the share
of 25.07% of loss attributable to shareholders of Beijing Sports and
Entertainment Industry Group Limited of approximately HK$16,652,000,
and the share of 20% of loss attributable to shareholders of Shanghai
Junbo Textiles Limited of approximately HK$6,347,000.
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Net assets

As at 31 December 2022, the net assets of the Group was approximately
HK$2,143,660,000, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$352,959,000 from approximately HK$2,496,619,000 for 2021.
Excluding the generation of loss of approximately HK$98,805,000 during
the year, the net assets decreased by HK$254,154,000 as compared to
2021, which was mainly due to the depreciated exchange rate of RMB
against Hong Kong dollar of approximately 8.5% during 2022, the Group
recognised exchange losses of HK$141,525,000 in other comprehensive
income and losses, fair value loss of equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$35,741,000 and deconsolidation of a subsidiary leading to a decrease
in non-controlling interests of HK$71,156,000.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents held by the
Group was approximately HK$193,726,000 (2021: HK$239,136,000),
restricted bank balances was HK$nil (2021:HK$3,994,000) and balance
of wealth management products from banks was approximately
HK$220,093,000 (2021: HK$222,479,000). Cash and cash equivalents
decreased by approximately HK$45,410,000, mainly due to the Group's
newly purchased investment properties of HK$15,734,000 and the net
outflow of cash and cash equivalents of HK$19,355,000 resulting from
deconsolidation of subsidiaries in 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings was approximately HK$25,747,000 (2021: HK$36,693,000).
As at 31 December 2022, the net current assets of the Group reached
HK$457,481,000 and the current ratio was 3.51 times. The Group
maintains sufficient bank credit facilities to meet working capital needs
and has sufficient cash resources to finance its capital expenditure in the
foreseeable future.

The Group agreed that meticulous management on cash flow is the key
to success. To ensure that there is sufficient capital to satisfy the need
of the Group's rapid growth, the Group remains good relationships with
each of the banks from time to time, so that the Group gains easy access
to application for loans.

Capital expenditure

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's capital expenditure was
approximately HK$16,880,000 (2021: HK$1,579,000), mainly represented
by the purchase of investment properties and properties, plants and
equipment.
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Capital structure

The Group took full advantage of the financing platform as a listed
company by striving for a constant optimisation of the capital and
financing structure, so as to obtain sufficient funds to finance the future
projects of health and geriatric care. During the year, the Group's
operations were mainly financed by internal resources and bank loans.

Pledge of assets

The Group's bank loans as at 31 December 2022 are secured by
properties included in property, plant and equipment and investment
properties with carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period
of HK$14,176,000 (2021: HK$26,363,000) and HK$21,269,000 (2021:
HK$32,642,000), respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank facility of RMB180,000,000
was secured by a land use right included in right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying amount as at 31 December 2021 of HK$383,084,000.
The bank facility expired within 2022 and the pledge was cancelled.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group acted as a guarantor for the bank
facility granted to an associate of the Company, details of which please
refer to note 36 of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities.

Foreign exchange risk

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operate in the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. Fluctuations of
RMB exchange rates would impact the Group’s net asset value in the
preparation of the Group’s consolidated accounts. If RMB appreciates/
depreciates against HK$, the Group would record a(n) increase/decrease
in the Group’s net asset value. Also, the Group has exposure to foreign
exchange risks in relation to other receivables and investments in a joint
venture denominated in CAD. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
in respect of the Group’s exposure to potential foreign exchange risks
arising from the currency exchange rate fluctuations, it did not make any
arrangement or use any financial instruments to hedge against potential
foreign exchange risks. However, the management will continue to
monitor foreign exchange risks and adopt hedging measures where
necessary.
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Relationships with employees, suppliers and customers

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development in the long
term, continuously create value for its employees and customers, and
foster good relationships with its suppliers. The Group understands that
employees are its valuable assets, and the realisation and enhancement
of employees’ values will facilitate the achievement of the Group's overall
goals. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group provided
generous social security benefits to its employees to motivate their
proactivity at work while heightening their sense of belonging. The Group
also understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with
its suppliers and customers to the overall development of the Group.
The Group places emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair
and open competition to foster long-term relationships with quality
suppliers on the basis of mutual trust. To maintain the competitiveness
of its brand and products, the Group abides by the principles of honesty
and trustworthiness and commits itself to consistently providing quality
products to establish a reliable service environment for its customers. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no significant and material
dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

Employee benefits and training

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 166 (2021:
183) employees (77 males and 89 females (2021: 82 males and 101
females)) and total staff cost (excluding Directors’ remuneration) as of
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$43,382,000 (2021:
HK$46,244,000). The Group made great efforts to enhance the quality of
staff. During the year under review, the Group organised internal training
courses for staff at all levels. Topics of the training courses included
accounting and finance, risk management and PRC's tax laws.

The Group's overall remuneration system is adhered to the principle of
market orientation, offering competitive salary to retain and attract high
caliber persons. The salaries of the Group’s senior management are
determined with reference to market level as well as the Group's overall
operating results.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group strives to offer investors access to updated and accurate
information on the Group's latest major development. The Group
believes that effective communication is built on a twoway basis,
and therefore welcomes feedbacks from investors to the Group. To
facilitate an easy access to information on the Company'’s latest major
development, a number of measures have been taken to ensure all
necessary information and appropriate updates are made available
to investors in a timely manner through the Company’s website at
www.bjhl.com.hk, under the column of the “Investor Relations”.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's Annual Report
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) are
applied and implemented is explained below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group's success and sustainability. We are committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance as an essential
component of quality and have introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our business.

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the CG Code.

The Company has adopted different measures to ensure a high standard
of corporate governance and has put in place corporate governance
practices that are considered to be relevant to the Group, to meet the
CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Company has reviewed its corporate governance practices and
has taken appropriate actions to comply with the CG Code which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs of the Report.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company’s mission is to restore health, wishing all stakeholders to
live a healthy life and providing multi-scenario healthy living packages.
Its vision is to become a leader in the geriatric care and health industry
in China as well as the preferred partner for customers and other
stakeholders. To achieve this long-term vision, the Company focuses
its attention on certain strategic areas, including investing in beds of
geriatric care institutions and nurturing professional talents.

The Board of the Company has formulated the following corporate
culture and values to guide the conduct and behavior of employees and
business activities, and to ensure that these values are integrated into
the Company’s vision, mission, policies and business strategies.
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"“Integrity, Innovation, Focus, Win-win"

Keep integrity to promote the virtues of Beijing Health

Dare to innovate to integrate the brand of Beijing Health

Focus on operation to improve the quality of Beijing Health

Collaborate to achieve win-win situation to share the benefits of Beijing
Health

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has regularly
reviewed the Company'’s strategic focus. The Company ensures that its
employees are fully aware of the Company'’s vision, corporate culture
and strategy through various means, including holding company-wide
meetings, regular management meetings, individual departmental
meetings and internal communication through the intranet. Our ability to
achieve our vision depends on the effectiveness of our people, and we
strive to ensure that we recruit the people who will best fit into and build
our corporate culture.

In addition, the Company has formulated an employee handbook that
all employees must follow, the purpose of which is to provide employees
with the necessary cultural guidance. All of these initiatives are important
to the adoption of the Company's strategy and the implementation of
the Company'’s values and culture.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company was
informed that:

Mr. Siu Kin Wai, an Executive Director of the Company, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Golden Century International
Holdings Group Limited (HKEX Stock Code: 91) with effect from 22
March 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 11 members, consisting of é Executive
Directors and 5 Independent Non-executive Directors.

The list of all Directors (by category) is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2 and all corporate communications issued by
the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
Independent Non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, save as Mr. Zhang Jing Ming
resigned from as executive director and joint chief executive officer of
the Company and Mr. Liu Xue Heng re-designated as the chief executive
officer at 15 July 2022, there have no changes in the composition of the
Board of the Company. The Board currently comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied
with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding the
appointment of at least three independent non- executive directors
(representing at least one-third of the board) including at least one
independent non-executive director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations
are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company'’s
expenses, upon making request to the Board.

Currently, the Chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhu Shi Xing and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group is Mr. Liu Xue Heng. The roles of
Chairman on the one hand and the Joint Chief Executive Officers on
the other hand are segregated and their respective responsibilities are
clearly defined and set out in writing.
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The Chairman’s principal role is to provide leadership for the Board on
corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of the
Board and encourage all Directors to have active contributions to the
Board's affairs.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Every Independent Non-executive Director is appointed for a specific
term of 3 years under his letter of appointment. All Directors including
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company. The Company has issued formal letter
of appointments to its Independent Non-executive Directors setting out
key terms of their appointments.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors participated the
trainings as follows:
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Topic
Directors 5= =12
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing AT B A A B,CD
Mr. Liu Xue Heng 2BiE A4 A B, C D
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRR BASEAE
(Resigned on 15 July 2022) (RZZEZ—_F+ATHBET) C
Mr. Siu Kin Wai WwiREsE A B,CD
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BERAE A, B,C,D
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi TR S A BCD
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun FIEFELLE A B, C D
Independent Non-executive Directors BN TEE
Mr. Gary Zhao izl it A BCD
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp FREEE A B CD
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith S A/B,CD
Mr. Wu Yong Xin ROKFT R A, B,C D
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RERLE A BCD
A: Anti-corruption A RES
B: Regulatory Announcements issued by HKEX B: BEEXSMBMEEBM

C: Listing Rules

D: Corporate culture of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory requirements,
the code of conducts, the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Pursuant to the requirements of the code provisions set out in the CG
Code, all Directors are required to provide to the Company with records
of the training they received to ensure that their contributions to the
Board remains informed and relevant.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has applied the Model Code to the relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Model Code by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Investment and Risk Management Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of
the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available
to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors (except for the Investment and
Risk Management Committee) and the current list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “"Corporate
Information” on page 2.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company'’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Gary Zhao
and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director with the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:
o To review the financial statements and reports and consider

any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditors before submission to the Board
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o To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company'’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year to review
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems and processes, the reappointment
of the external auditors and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors three times without
the presence of the Management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Gary Zhao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Tse Man Kit,
Keith and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Company adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. As a result, the Board as a whole
is responsible for determining the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors whereas the Remuneration Committee has the authority to
approve the remuneration of the individual Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries as well as share
options related matters.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
met once to review the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

The details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated audited
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members, namely,
Mr. Wu Yong Xin (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, Mr. Tse
Man Kit, Keith and Mr. Gary Zhao. The majority of them are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

Principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, identifying suitable candidates for appointment
as Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and ethnicity, in
addition to educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on
the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
met once to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Gu Shan
Chao, Mr. Hu Shiang Chi, Mr. Siu Kin Wai and Mr. Gary Zhao shall retire
by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Company's circular dated 21 April 2023 contains detailed information
of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Board Diversity Policy
The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team of
Board members, which is an essential element in maintaining an effective
Board and enhancing corporate governance standard. The Nomination
Committee of the Company is delegated the authority (amongst other
things) to review and assess the diversity of the Board, with the objective
of maintaining an appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives on the Board which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge, industry and
professional experience, cultural and educational background, gender,
age and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee shall discuss and where necessary, agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and make
recommendation to the Board. The Board may adopt and/or amend
from time to time (as applicable) such diversity perspectives and/or
measurable objectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business
and Board succession planning, as applicable.

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) setting out the procedures and criteria to be
used by the Company in relation to the selection, appointment and
re-appointment of Directors to ensure that the Board maintains an
appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives to the requirements of the Company'’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to this Director
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy to nominate
suitably qualified candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at general
meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies or as an addition
to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and the Director Nomination
Policy and considered that they remain effective and appropriate for
the Company. As the Board currently comprises 11 male members, the
Board considers the need to nominate at least 1 female member into
the Board, so as to achieve the board diversity purpose. The Nomination
Committee will conduct the selection of right candidate by the end of
2024.
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Investment and Risk Management Committee

The Investment and Risk Management Committee currently comprised
Mr. Gu Shan Chao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Liu Xue Heng, Mr.
Zhu Shi Xing (all being Executive Directors) and Mr. Lam Ka Tak (the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary).

Principal duties of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
include overseeing the risk management and evaluating the major
investment and funding projects of the Group.

There is one meeting held by the Investment and Risk Management
Committee during the year.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and the Company'’s staff handbook, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Ka Tak has been the company secretary of the Company since
30 September 2010. Mr. Lam Ka Tak is the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Lam has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh
his skills and knowledge.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Ve AN~
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EERZEEREZHFERTRE

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE JTE=E

Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

REFGREFZEGURARRARRRG 2 H
RREEHEIIN T

HEER/ERRH
Investment
and Risk
Management Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit  Committee General
Board  Committee = Committee = Committee REKER Meeting
ETxg REZEE FHzEE EKZEE EEZEE RREFXE
Name of Directors EEns
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing MARSE 5/5 171 - - 17 171
Mr. Liu Xue Heng BEEE 5/5 - - - 1/1 0/
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BERLE 5/5 - - - 1" i
Mr. Siu Kin Wai REELE 5/5 - - - - 171
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi ikl 5/5 - - - - 171
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun FTEERAE 4/5 - - - - 0/1
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming REAKE
(Resigned on 15 July 2022) (R=ZE=-=
tA+TRARE) 0/2 - - - - 0/1
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp REBHE4E 4/5 - - - - ”n
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith IR E 5/5 11 1N 3/3 - 11
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RAEFEHE 5/5 01 11 3/3 - 01
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RERLE 5/5 - - - - ”n
Mr. Gary Zhao RIS AE 5/5 1”1 17 33 - il
Name of Committee Member ZEEREH
Mr. Lam Ka Tak MEEEE - - - - 1" -
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings BREZGOIGIN  ERITNERNEE L IENTE

with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of

Executive Directors during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements. The
Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable
accounting standards are complied with.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their

reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 59 to 65.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

BB ET N &
BE-T-—F+-A=+—BIFEREER
B RIFRBRG EN AR RIMERBE 2 25
HanT

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category BR#% 5 % e ENER
HK$
BT
Audit Services ZERRTES

— Statutory audit services —AEEZRE 1,650,000

Non-audit Services FEE RS
— Agreed-upon procedures on interim results — R HRENIHERT 400,000
2,050,000

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for the
re-appointment of Emnst & Young as the Company'’s external auditor for
the year 2023. The recommendation will put forward for shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of the Group is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to take in
achieving its strategic objectives, and ensuring that an appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control system is established
and maintained by the Group. The Board of the Group has overseen
the management in the design, implementation and monitoring the risk
management and internal control system. The Board has confirmed that
it is its duty to establish a risk management and internal control system,
and that it will constantly oversee the system and ensure a regular review
of the effectiveness of the system will be conducted at least once a year.

The Board and the Audit Committee of the Company have also
confirmed that during the reporting period, they have reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and its subsidiaries, covering all important control aspects
including financial control, operational control and compliance control.

EXeREERZESRRERLOKERMNER
FIRARBIN T - = F MR8 - HEEZES
RARBEEBIRIBERE LR 2 ARARALE o

[\ B E T I A BB EE 4R

AEBEEEEA RN METARBZKERRER
REMBEAZNREREERIEE @ WHRARASE
BRI MEmAERBRNRREE RN AR
R - AEEEZSCEEEEEYRAREER
NHBEZERRNRT  BREMAER -EE59H
R EBEERURRERRABEERSL - I
EREEBAMAS  LTHEARKOESFERRS
—REMEGNBRIL -

ARREEGRERZEGNHRAEEARE Y
M E A AN B K E B A R R R 2 & AR
EERGNAMLE  FRRMRERMFEENE
BOE  BREMBERE  SERERAREE -

£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

33



34

Corporate Governance Report ® (P38

During the reporting period, the Board and the Audit Committee of the
Company have evaluated the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system, the procedures of which include:

(1) To determine the extent of the system, identify risks and prepare
risk checklists;

(2)  To assess and prioritize the impacts of the risks based on their
impacts on the operational efficiency, sustainable development
capability and reputation in accordance with the generally
accepted risk management framework, with reference to the
probability of various types of potential risks, the extent of the
management'’s concerns and the possible financial loss arising
from the risks;

(3)  To ensure risk management measures are in place to identify
significant risks, to conduct internal control evaluation on the
design and implementation of such risk management measures
and to take actions to rectify the control gaps;

(4)  To conduct a regular review and summary on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system through
evaluation on the significant risks and implementation of
rectification measures carried out by the management, so as to
maximize and continuously enhance the risk management;

(5)  To prepare a risk management manual that determines the duties
and responsibilities of management, board of directors and Audit
Committee in risk management, and to provide guideline for
constantly monitoring the risk management and internal control
system;

(6)  The management has reported to the Audit Committee on the
results of regular review and evaluation on the risk management,
internal control systems, significant risk factors and corresponding
measures during the reporting period.

Nevertheless, the risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks that arising from
unsuccessful business objectives, and only to make reasonable, but not
absolute assurances for the non-material misrepresentation or losses.
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As to the procedures and internal controls for handling and
disseminating the inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the overriding principle of
dealing with the inside information is to make announcement
immediately after such information comes to its attention and/
or a relevant decision has been made, unless such information
falling within the provision of “Safe Harbours” as provided in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance;

o conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012;

o has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs. Senior executives of
the Group are designated and authorised to act as the Company's
spokespersons and respond to specific enquiries;

o has implemented and disclosed its own Code of Conduct for share
transaction by relevant employee and inside information disclosure

policy.

The Company has set up an internal audit function and engaged
professional consultants to assist in the risk identification and evaluation
so as to formulate its risk management measure. The Company has
evaluated the design and implementation of internal control measures
for significant risks. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system and considered it is effective
and adequate and will continue to enhance the effectiveness in the
coming future.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy on 30 December 2022. It provides
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting
channels on reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related
to the Group directly addressed to the designated person.

An email account (enquiry@bjhl.com.hk) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently and,
in the meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and its
identity will be kept confidential.

The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.
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ANTI-BRIBERY AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy on 30 March
2022. It outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the
Group defend against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably
suspected case of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to
the management or through an appropriate reporting channel. The
Group would not tolerate all forms of bribery and corruption among all
employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf
of the Group, and in its business dealing with third parties.

The Board and the Audit Committee will review the Anti-Bribery
and Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to ensure
its effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of
Bribery and corruption.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward
at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholders held at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
meeting shall be called for the transaction of any business specified in
the written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company;
and shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders who wish to move resolutions at general meetings may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:
Address: Unit 2704, 27/F

909 Cheung Sha Wan Road

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: 2681-2789

Email: enquiry@bijhl.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address, apart from the registered
office of the Company, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information
may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at http://www.bjhl.com.hk, where up-to-date information and updates
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Investment and Risk
Management Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees and, where applicable, are available to answer
questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2022 Annual General Meeting (“AGM") was held on 30 May 2022.
The notice of AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the AGM.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its Articles
of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s Articles of
Association is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange's website.

The Board regularly reviews our existing channels of communication with
Shareholders and investors to make sure that they remain effective and
provides recommendations for improvements when needed. The Board
considers our current practices were all well-implemented throughout
the year and achieved satisfactory results.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESENEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in September 2014. He is currently the Chairman of the Board
and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Investment and
Risk Management Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu graduated from
Central University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
finance and obtained his master’s degree in software engineering from
Beihang University. In addition, Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in sport management from Beijing Sport University in July 1994. Mr. Zhu
started his career as an assistant in the investment department of China
Xinxing Corporation (Group) Ltd. in 1994. During the period from 2004
to 2015, Mr. Zhu joined Beijing Holdings Limited (“BHL"), an affiliate
of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited ("BPHL"”, HKEX Stock Code:
925), and had been nominated as the vice general manager of various
subsidiaries of BHL involving in industries such as tourism, logistics and
property development, and the executive vice president of BPHL. Mr.
Zhu was also an Executive Director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited ("Beijing Sports and Entertainment”, HKEX Stock
Code: 1803), an associate of the Company during the period from 24
December 2015 to 25 February 2021. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience
in investment, financial management and property development.

Mr. Liu Xue Heng

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company in September 2014
and April 2015 respectively, and re-designated to Chief Executive
Officer on 15 July 2022. He is currently a member of the Investment
and Risk Management Committee of the Company. Before joining the
Company, Mr. Liu served as an Executive Director and the Chairman of
the Investment and Risk Management Committee of BPHL during the
period from 1 January 2011 to 23 December 2015, an Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of Tai United Holdings Limited (HKEX
Stock Code: 718) during the period from 11 July 2014 to 19 January
2016, as well as an Independent Non-executive Director of Guangshen
Railway Co., Limited (HKEX Stock Code: 525) during the period from
2 June 2011 to 29 May 2014 respectively. Mr. Liu is also an Executive
Director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment since January 2016 and
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of Beijing
Sports and Entertainment since April 2016. Mr. Liu obtained a master's
degree of Business Administration from Cambridge University in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in equity investment,
corporate finance, initial public offer and mergers and acquisitions.
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Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Mr. Siu Kin Wai, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 22 May 2017. He is an Executive Director of BPHL since
July 2009 and the General manager of BPHL since July 2017. Mr. Siu was
also appointed as the Non-executive Director of CAQ Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange with a Listing
Corporation Code of CAQ) in April 2015, an Independent Non-executive
Director of Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (HKEX Stock
Code: 8001) in September 2017 and an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of MillanMin Ventures Inc. ("MVM") (a company listed
on the Toronto Stock Exchange with a Listing Stock Code of MVM)
in January 2017, and resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of MVM
in April 2018. Mr. Siu was an independent non-executive director of
Agritrade Resources Limited (previous HKEX Stock Code: 1131) with
effect from 24 August 2010 to 9 June 2021. The shares of Agritrade
Resources Limited have been delisted from the Stock Exchange since 31
January 2022. He was also appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Golden Century International Holdings Group Limited (HKEx
Stock Code: 91) with effect from 22 March 2023. Mr. Siu graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy
and is a fellow members of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Siu has extensive experience in financial management and corporate
advisory.

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Gu Shan Chao, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2014. He is currently the Chairman of
the Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company and
the President of the Group. Mr. Gu obtained his bachelor’s degree
in electronic engineering from the Beijing Institute of Technology
and master's degree in property from Tsinghua University. Mr. Gu
participated in the property industry since 1999, and had been the Sales
Director and General Manager of various property developers in Beijing.
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Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi, aged 62, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Hu obtained his master’'s degree in
International Business and bachelor’'s degree in Electrical Engineering
from National Taiwan University. Mr. Hu has extensive experience in
operation management and company acquisition.
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Mr. Hu currently holds the directorship in the following companies:

Company Name

ANCIR=T

Stock Code Position
B 17 w5 Bz

Abico NetCom Co., Ltd.
BEEPBERDBRAF

TranSystem Inc.

FRMERNBER DA

Taipei Exchange: 8071
BEEFEREESL 8071

Taipei Exchange: 5348
REEFEEEFERD 1 5348

Chairman of the Board
EER

Chairman of the Board
BEER

IKKA Holdings (Cayman) Limited Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation: 2250 Chairman of the Board
E—eizER(FAE)’RHEBERAE RIEEHFR T - 2250 BEER
Abico AVY Co., Ltd Taipei Exchange: 5392 Managing Director
EERAIFNBRAR] HEFEFBEEET L 1 5392 TG
Ability Enterprises Co., Ltd. Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation: 2374 Director
FERREERGBERAA REEFRFM - 2374 s
Allis Electric Co., Ltd. Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation: 1514 Independent Director
DABEEBRMDERAT] BEFEHFIHM 1 1514 BYES
JSL Construction & Development Co., Ltd. Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation: 2540 Independent Director
LM RFAERHBRIQA] REEFR M - 2540 BUEE

In addition, Mr. Hu was a director of Dr Chip Biotechnology Inc. (Taipei gboh - HEAR B —F+—HAET-__F

Exchange: 4131) during November 2021 to August 2022.
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Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in June 2008. He was the Chairman of the
Company during the period from October 2008 to February 2015. Mr.
Wang has over twenty years of experience in property development
and management. He has substantial experience in developing and
constructing villas, residential units and commercial buildings in the
mainland China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, aged 56, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in May 2015 and re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director in May 2017. Mr. Koepp obtained
his bachelor’s degree in Asian Studies from Pomona College, USA, and
Master of Business Administration from Cambridge University in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Koepp has indepth professional experience in
public and private equity financing, real estate, economics and business
strategies, particularly for those Chinese companies which are listed
overseas.

Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Wu Yong Xin, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is currently
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Wu is currently the Executive Vice President, Chief Government Affairs
Officer and General Manager of Regional Organization of Siemens Ltd.,
China. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree in economics from Capital
University of Economics and Trade in Beijing and master’'s degree
in business administration from China Europe International Business
School.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is
currently the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tse has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and
an Executive Director of China Technology Industry Group Limited (HKEX
Stock Code: 8111) since 1T May 2019 and 12 July 2019 respectively. Mr. Tse
was also appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited (HKEX Stock Code:
1165) from September 2010 to November 2018, and was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
since January 2016. Mr. Tse has around 20 years of working experience
in accounting and financial management. Mr. Tse is a fellow Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tse obtained
a bachelor’s degree in commerce from University of Wollongong, New
South Wales, Australia in July 1997, majoring in accountancy and finance.
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Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Gary Zhao, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in February 2016. He is currently
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English literature from Northeast
Normal University and a master’s degree in education from Hebei
University in 1984 and 1986 respectively. Mr. Zhao worked in the State
Education Commission of the People’s Republic of China since 1986
and was re-designated to work in the Department of Foreign Investment
of Beijing Foreign Trade and Economic Relations Commission in 1989.
From 1992 to 2005, Mr. Zhao successively served as the General Manager
for several enterprises, and has subsequently become a fulltime freelance
investor since 2005. Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in the Chinese
economic development, Chinese financial market, project investment
and corporate management.

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Zhang has engaged
in clinical work of internal medicine and neurology for over 20 years. He
possesses knowledge in relation to neuroanatomy, neuropathology,
electroneurophysiology, neuroimaging and other disciplines. After
finishing his first doctorate degree in Nanfang Hospital of First Military
Medical University in Guangzhou and second doctorate degree in
Xuanwu Hospital of Capital Medical University in Beijing, Mr. Zhang
obtained his qualification of PhD candidate in Neurology from PLA
Military Medical School (PLA General Hospital) ( fif# X & & # & 2 ft
(B 7% 4 & Bt ) ) in Beijing, a master candidate in Neurology from
Zhujiang Hospital of First Military Medical University in Guangzhou and a
bachelor’s degree in Clinical Medicine from The Fourth Military Medical
University in Xian, respectively. Mr. Zhang obtained the professional
qualification of chief physician in Neurology (## & /& %} &= £ & &l ) in
2016. He is currently the medical group leader of emergency Neurology
(18 & AR EE 7R ), and an chief physician, associate professor and
postgraduate tutor in Xuanwu Hospital of Capital Medical University in
Beijing.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 41, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group, he joined the Group in September 2010. Mr.
Lam received his master’s degree of Business Administration from The
University of Hong Kong and bachelor’s degree of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Business Accountants Association. He has over 19
years of working experience in financial management and corporate
finance. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lam had worked for KPMG as an
audit manager. He is also an Executive Director of Beijing Sports and
Entertainment and an Independent Non-executive Director of Net-A-Go
Technology Company Limited (HKEX Stock Code: 1483).
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Directors’ Report

ESEHE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including future
development in the Group's business, can be found in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report. The above section
forms part of this “Directors’ Report”.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE

The financial condition, results of operation, business and prospects
of the Group could be affected by certain risks and uncertainties. The
following are the main risks and uncertainties identified by the Group. In
addition, there may be other risks and uncertainties that the Group has
not yet discovered or currently regards as immaterial, and these risks and
uncertainties may have a significant impact on the Group in the future.

Risk of Investment Decisions

Risk analysis: According to the Group’s development strategies,
we will continue to acquire new projects in the future, whether high
quality projects will be selected and investment decisions to be made
scientifically will have far-reaching effects on the Group's development.

Tackling measures: Subject to corporate strategies, the Group will
determine the investment decision indicators and the information
required for analysis, and maintain close communication with the relevant
assessment agencies and collaborative authorities; combine preliminary
investment research with project progress conditions and influencing
factors, such as socio-economic policies, to predict possible external
factors which may arise in later stages; select the right timing of entry for
the project and formulate the corresponding investment strategies, and
make timely adjustments to achieve the best result.
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Directors’ Report ® EE & s

Market Risk

The Group's medical and geriatric furniture business is mainly conducted
in a business-to-business model. Affected by market environment,
corporate customers may slow down and reduce the amount and
frequency of tenders, especially under the COVID-19 pandemic, the
domestic economic growth has slowed down, which will increase the
possibility of market structural adjustments.

Tackling measures: Proactively communicate with major clients; collect
industry information in a timely manner; conduct proper studies and
prediction of market trends; timely adjust the Company’s planning
and actively optimize the Company’s industrial structure; expand new
business models and take other measures to deal with risks.

Foreign Exchange Risk

As the Group's investment in overseas (especially in Canada) continues
to increase, the Group's performance may be subject to various risks
caused by exchange rate fluctuations.

Tackling measures: The Company will pay close attention to the trend
of exchange rate changes; enhance the risk prevention awareness of
relevant personnel of the Company; and apply financial hedging tools to
deal with exchange rate risks when appropriate.

Risk of Sectoral and Economic Policies

Risk analysis: Changes in sectoral and economic policies in China will
have impact on medical and geriatric business. Currently, policies for the
sector remained stable and favourable.

Tackling measures: the Group will monitor simultaneously the conditions
of the province where the subsidiaries operate, including industry
policies, regional economic policies and macroeconomic changes,
collect and arrange the relevant information regularly to establish a
database for carrying out analysis and research to formulate tackling
measures; strengthen interaction between peer entities and superior
authorities to understand the changing direction of the industry,
exchange management experience and enable good communication.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 66 to 68.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year. The Board believes in balancing returns to shareholders with
investment to support future growth and has decided that it would be
in the Group's best interests to reserve sufficient financial resources for
future business developments.
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Dividend Policy
The Board adopted a dividend policy on 29 March 2019 (the “Dividend
Policy”). According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether

to declare any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to be

declared, the Company shall consider a number of factors, including but

not limited to:

the Group's actual and expected financial results;

the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

the Company's business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans;

the Company'’s liquidity position;

retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the Company;

the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends imposed
by the Company’s lenders and other institutions; and

any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable from
time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution

proportion or distribution ratio, the declaration, payment and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.
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Directors’ Report ® EE & s

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the year
are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The value of investment properties as at 31 December 2022 was
measured with the fair value model, details of which are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the distribution
of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution amounted to HK$902,968,000 which
consisted of share premium of HK$1,773,257,000 net of accumulated
losses of HK$870,289,000.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED BE BOxHELETRES
SECURITIES

The Company had bough back its Shares on the Stock Exchange during ARRREE_E-_—_F+_A=+—HIFE
the year ended 31 December 2022 with details as follow: B BB RO, - FEBT

Price per Share

BREE

Number of
Shares Highest Lowest Total
Purchased Price Paid Price Paid Paid
Trading Day X5 H BEzROBE ZfAzH&sEE ITZHEER AT
HKS$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
1 June 2022 T ZFXA—H 5,190,000 0.093 0.089 474,108
2 June 2022 T ZFXAZH 6,522,000 0.095 0.092 612,786
6 June 2022 _2__¢/ SHA7XH 4,200,000 0.097 0.093 403,200
7 June 2022 —EZFXALA 1,728,000 0.100 0.097 172,656
8 June 2022 —EZZFXANB 1,476,000 0.104 0.100 149,094
14 June 2022 ZEZZFXATHEA 1,056,000 0.105 0.096 107,766
20,172,000 1,919,610

All of the shares bought back during the year ended 31 December 2022 FEREE_ZE_—_F+_RA=1T—HLFEH
were cancelled on 22 July 2022. B2 ROBER T _F+ AT -HFH -

Save as disclosed, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the BEFIEBEEN REE_T__F+=-A=+—

Company or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities HIESFEHM - AARSCAERNE DA ERE
during the year ended 31 December 2022. 8 HEIBEARFZ LHE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 26 April
2002 (the "2002 Scheme”) and replaced by the share option scheme
adopted on 24 May 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Further details are
disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses the number of outstanding share options
granted to the Directors of the Company at the beginning of the period
and at 31 December 2022:

Number of
share options at

Eﬁﬂﬂggfil

ARARRZZEZEZFMA =+ A RMERET
([ =TT =F5E)) YRE-ZT—=FHA
“HMBERA ERERTEI( = =& D)
B o E— B BERER S SRR 31 -

TREEARABRBIEREE T -_—F+_-A
=+ —HBEFARBEZHRITEERERE 2

#eh
=

Number of
share options at

1 January Lapsed during 31 December
2022 the year 2022
. S 7 S

—B—HA2 +=ZA=+—Hx2

BREHAE FRARK BREHE

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing M E LA 30,000,000 - 30,000,000

Mr. Liu Xue Heng BBt 30,000,000 - 30,000,000

Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEEHEE 30,000,000 - 30,000,000

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TIEERA 30,000,000 - 30,000,000

Mr. Siu Kin Wai %&fﬁ%i 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming REAASLE

(Resigned on 15 July 2022) (R=ZT=——=F

+A+HEBEEE) 20,000,000 (20,000,000) -

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi EEMELST A 15,000,000 - 15,000,000

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp B2 E 7,000,000 - 7,000,000

Mr. Wu Yong Xin RoKETRAE 4,000,000 - 4,000,000

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith BTt 4,000,000 - 4,000,000

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RIEFSLE 2,000,000 - 2,000,000

182,000,000 (20,000,000) 162,000,000

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 258,000,000 share options
outstanding under the 2013 Scheme. Should they be fully exercised,
the Company will receive HK$149,260,000 (before issue expenses). The
fair value of these unexercised options measured in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy (note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements) amounted to HK$82,643,000.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any of the directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RZEBE-_—F+-A=+—08  KARRN=-ZE
— = 512|118 T~ 4 258,000,00017 i A& 1715 B B4 IR
P o M EEREITE - AR A HUER 149,260,000
I (RFTEITHAR) - ZEMARITEBRERE
REBEHER (REMBHREMT24)FTEHA
B 482,643,000 7T °

BREXEREIN  RERAEAKERETMNES
iﬁ%%@ZEﬁi*&i%ﬁﬁf%iﬁﬁT
BBBALR Th@&ﬁ%‘ﬁ#mZ%ﬂ
ARE - EERAR - HEAHER 7xm%w
BRRER AL RS ARBEEE
ANEAEAEABRE 2 % HER
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Chief Executive Officer)
(Re-designated on 15 July 2022)

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Joint Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 15 July 2022)

Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Gu Shan
Chao, Mr. Hu Shiang Chi, Mr. Siu Kin Wai and Mr. Gary Zhao shall retire
by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Company and each Director have entered into a letter of
appointment for a term of 3 years, subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company or any entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

EENERGHN 2R

MAFERFAEARRE - WEEMNARR B
ZI A RS EAEMMB AR RRIAT - BEARE
E=YREZEMENERERIMEES
BEARGZEREKEN -

EERBRHORABRN 2 ES

RZZEZZF+ZA=+—0 EZEREFEEFH
ZHEEE A TR B R E AR EE 2 B D R AR
DR EB IR AR BIIRIEEFH M ERE GG ([ #FF
KEREEG]]) 352168 17 B 2 B oM ATt 8k
RIBZESFRIE BITANE ARG KRBT 2 s

pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

LU

() Long positions (iy H&
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company K2 AR EIEO.208 T R
Approx.
percentage
of the
Interest in Total issued share
Interest underlying interest capital of
Name of Director Capacity in shares shares in shares the Company
LN
izl ligvi) BBRITRAE
HEME 54 R RS IR %R BrER BMABEDH
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun Beneficial owner 5,468,750 30,000,000 35,468,750 0.59%
FEERSE BEmEA A (Note 3)
(K5E3)

Interest held by spouse 35,074,000 - 35,074,000 0.58%

MEERA 2= (Note 1)

(K&
Interest held by 64,811,000 - 64,811,000 1.07%

controlled corporation (Note 2)

HREGVEERE 2 s (H5E2)
105,353,750 30,000,000 135,353,750 2.24%
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Approx.

percentage

of the

Interest in Total issued share

Interest underlying interest capital of

Name of Director Capacity in shares shares in shares the Company

(ER N

izl Bz BEITRE

EEHA 514 B R RPERE BEs BHREok

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.50%
AL ER ST EnEBA (Note 3)
(PIZE3)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.50%
2IBEkE BnlEBA (Note 3)
(PIZE3)

Mr. Gu Shan Chao Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.50%
FEBEE BnlEBA (Note 3)
(PIZE3)

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.25%
LK) BnlEBA (Note 3)
(BIZE3)

Mr. Siu Kin Wai Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.17%
RlEE A BnlEBA (Note 3)
(fF7E3)

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp Beneficial owner - 7,000,000 7,000,000 0.12%
FREESGE EmEB A (Note 3)
(fF3E3)

Mr. Wu Yong Xin Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
RIKFTF A BnlEBA (Note 3)
(fF7E3)

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
EiIp e S BnlEBEA (Note 3)
(MF7E3)

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.03%
SRIBE A BnlEBEA (Note 3)
(fF7E3)
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(ii)

Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Zheng Chun (“Mr. Wang”) is deemed to be interested in
35,074,000 shares, being the interests beneficially held by his spouse,
Madam Shen Ling Zhao.

2. The 64,811,000 shares are held by Hillfame Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Wang.

3. The interests were derived from share options granted by the Company
on 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 which entitled the holders thereof
to subscribe for Shares at an exercise price of HK$0.61 and HK$0.53 per
Share. First 30% of the share options granted were vested in one year
after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 (as the case may be), second 30%
of the share options granted were vested in two years after 2 April 2015
and 28 January 2016 (as the case may be) and remaining 40% of the share
options granted were vested in three years after 2 April 2015 and 28
January 2016 (as the case may be). The share options are exercisable from
the vesting date until 1 April 2025 and 27 January 2026 (as the case may
be).

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share options

The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share
options of the Company are separately disclosed in the section
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME" above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

(ii)

g

1. FIEHLAE 54 DR B#35,074,0008%
MDA R - kSRS
ERLTEEEA -

2. 64,811,000 & & f7 B Hillfame Holdings

Limited#§H @ Z AR RN B ER R ST
MR AR REZMERTRARTELE
EmlER -

3. ZERRDELAARRRANR-_T-HFMOA

ZHAERZE-AF AT N\AELNER
o ZEERES T ERE AT
FESRKRMH0.61EITRERRMN0.538 T
RERD - ORHE—HI0BERBER=Z
—HEMNABA-AR-_ZE—XRE-A-TN
HEFBEAME)E—FHRNSEEB: B
BEEZHI0%ERBER -_T—RAFNA=
BR-ZZ—X"E—A=-+NBETERM
E)EMEHWMSERE DS T40%5E
R —_E—RAFNA—BE T —R"F—
AZ+NB(RTERME) %= FHimes R
B EBRETAEBERPRE S _AFMHN
A—ARZZE-A"F—A-t+tRETER
MmE)T{E -

B EXIWEEI  BEESREFIHEA
TRAR B EAATHREHEB 2 E R &
TRERR O 5 A R IEE 5 M ETE 50155352
BIREFE 2 B MRS RIBEETH
B RITHEARNR A MBI AT 2 (R R R so%

A

=

R
EERTIZTHABRAR BB ER
BRI £ FR iR &) | — &R EE -

B EXEESN - ARE] - BAERARRE
EARTB /88 22 RV R 4 P A fa) s PR AR 4 BT SZ )
2 B ERTEBWEA ARSI
R ABRRZ RIS ERE Mt s -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered or existed.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the directors of the
Company had any interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than as disclosed above in the section headed “Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at 31 December 2022, the
shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had interests of 5% or more or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company

BEEHN
FR ARRAWEITI AW EFEBRADTE
BREEBXANEELH 2 EBRITRAL «

EENREMEE 2ER
REE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HBIFER &
RAIZEEMERBEAEELCENEFERBEF
AL E L AEER R TN EREEPEE T
IR o

FERRE

B EX[EE R MR G 2 = | — 8 #
BEIN RZEBEZZF+ZA=1+—H  RAER
Akt - MR G REEEREEREE S L
EEBIEXVELE2 R E 3D B ARA A RHE
EREARRTIRE S LI E KD E3B6GEFEN
B MARE BITAE AN A BIRI5% A EER K
KEZBRR(ARREERERITHABRIN I
T

L5y
A2 B EE0.2087T.2 BB

Number of shares Percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity beneficially held holding
BRREE BB 3% BERRFAROHE BEREDL
Cosmic Stand International Limited Beneficial owner 945,000,000 15.60%
BmlER A
Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.60%
bR (%) B R A A corporation (Note 1)
HEAEHNEB A 2 s (HRET)
Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited  Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.60%
IEEE(BEE)ERAF corporation (Note 1)
HEAEHNEB A 2w (HRET)
Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.60%

R EEER AR

corporation (Note 1)

SR HAE R A 2 s (PR
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Number of shares Percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity beneficially held holding
BERMESEHB 5% ERBERGOEAE BERBESHE
IR E XS B AR AR Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.60%
corporation (Note 1)
2T HEE A 2w ()
Beijing Financial Investment Interest held by controlled 548,409,806 9.05%
Holdings Limited corporation (Note 2)
R eRREERERAT BRI HEEE A 2w (E2)
Beijing Financial Holdings Interest held by controlled 548,409,806 9.05%
Group Limited corporation (Note 2)
IERERZEREEBR AR BRI HEES A 2w (E2)
Beijing Investment Co., Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 548,409,806 9.05%
IR EBR AR B e AMEE2)
Ng Kin Nam Beneficial owner 401,300,000 6.62%
Rz EmEA A
DA EIESEERD AR AR Interest held by controlled 324,684,000 5.36%

corporation (Note 3)

A SEE R AB R 2 (PE3)

Notes:

i -

These Shares were beneficially owned by Cosmic Stand International Limited.
Cosmic Stand International Limited is wholly owned by Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited. Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited is owned as to 35.72%
by Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited, 22.73% by Brilliant Bright
Holdings Limited, 7.11% by Beijing Holdings Limited and 1.28% by lllumination
Holdings Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing Holdings Limited which is
in turn a wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited).
Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited is wholly owned by Jb RibiE & 5%
E A2 A] which is in turn wholly owned by Beijing Enterprises Group Company
Limited. Accordingly, Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited, Beijing Enterprises
Real Estate (HK) Limited, 1t R 4t % & % % [# 5 R ‘A & and Beijing Enterprises
Group Company Limited are deemed to be interested in the 945,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Cosmic Stand International Limited under the SFO.

These Shares were beneficially owned by Beijing Investment Co., Limited. Beijing
Investment Co., Limited is wholly owned by Beijing Financial Holdings Group
Limited which is in turn wholly owned by Beijing Financial Investment Holdings
Limited. Accordingly, these companies are deemed to be interested in the
548,409,806 Shares beneficially owned by Beijing Investment Co., Limited under
the SFO.

1.

%55 %19 A Cosmic Stand International Limited & &
%A ° Cosmic Stand International Limited 3t 7UiE
BREER)BRARZEERS - ERERGER)BRA
AIRILEBE X (EE)BRABIHEA35.72% - HEBAE
[RERARHEB2273%  REBXE(KE)FRAF]
# A7.11% K lllumination Holdings Limited ( (R 28 &
¥ (KEB)ARRRZZEMBAR MRREE(E
B)ARARAARIEREREEERATZZENE
RADHH1.28% < LR BE(FE)ERAAHILR
IEBEEAERARZEARS  MURULEEEEER
RARBRIERIEREBEGRARZERS - At - 1R
BEFRAEE - ERERGER)ERAR - dbix
BEEB)BRRAA  EREEBEEEEEGRAR
RAEZRiE R & E A R A 7R AR Cosmic Stand
International Limited & # # /& 2 945,000,000 4% & 15
PR o

ZERMBIEREEERARESES - LRIKRE
BRARABIEAESHIERETERARZERS
Mt RE@mEREEERAFARItRSRIEER
BRERARZERES - Bt - REBEFEFRIPEKD -
ZENRFEARILRBRERARRAAERERZ
548,409,8061% % 15 i B #E s ©
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3. 200,400,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Easy Glory Holding Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Gloryeild Enterprises Limited (”Gloryeild”). Gloryeild
is wholly-owned by Sundart Holdings Limited and is indirectly wholly-owned by
Jangho Curtain Wall Hong Kong Limited (“Jangho”). Jangho is wholly-owned
by Lo £l 2 & B A B BR A 8 (“JI)A"). 124,284,000 Shares were beneficially
owned by Advance Finding Investments Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Peacemark Enterprises Limited (“Peacemark”). Peacemark is wholly-owned by
Jangho and is indirectly wholly-owned by JLA. Accordingly, JI/7 is deemed to
be interested in 324,684,000 Shares under the SFO.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed "Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme is set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the public float capitalisation was approximately

HK$347,725,000 (approximately 84.40% of the issued share capital of the
Company).

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

3. 200,400,000 3% % 17 B Easy Glory Holding Limited &
#@#EA M Easy Glory Holding Limited £ Gloryeild
Enterprises Limited ([ Gloryeild | ) 2 & # & -
Gloryeild AZE S BB R A A2 & %A I AT
BEEBERAR(DIIEREBE2EHES -
DA EfR T REEROARAF (TN ])
2 E WA © 124,284,000 A% 17 F2 Advance Finding
Investments Limited Bz # 4 - i1 Advance Finding
Investments Limited FH  Peacemark Enterprises
Limited([ Peacemark]) 2 & A ° Peacemarkf/L)f
BE2EHERBVWHIDIMES2ERER - Bt - RI5E
# MEIRED] - TR $4% /3 50 324,684,000 4% A% 1)
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B EXR[ESHRG RBRERYD 2 s | — &
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Shares. Intending holders and investors of the Company’s Shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they are in any
doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing
for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in the Shares. It is
emphasized that none of the Company or its directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of
Shares in the Company resulting from their subscription for, purchase,
holding, disposal of or dealing in such Shares.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022 containing the information required under
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report which will be published on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s website together with the publication of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

The Group is not aware of any instances of material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations such as the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Listing Rules, and other
applicable local laws and regulations in various jurisdictions during the
year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

BRI

AR B FEAR R B PR E 5 A I T A
BMIARR - ARRIBOHNBEEREARKREED
HRE BE A WEXEEROHOBBKE
Z(RENEARR) FEFRA  BHEARSEZ
BXREM - BURH  ARRREBFEREHA
U EEARBRNFEARRE  BE -
A HERBEEROMSIBHERRETZEX
BEAEEAEE -

BERRS
BE-_T-—F+-A=t+—RHItFEETHH
HAR G HIBEBENMISIREAM FE39 ©

REBERRKRE
ARRBEZE-_—_F+-A=1+—HILFEN
RBEBUR RABEH A IRE ETR BN ER27 TR E
MER EHRIRE  HeREARE  &ZHE
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 24% of the Group’s purchase were attributed by the
Group's five largest suppliers and approximately 9% of the Group's
purchase were attributed by the largest supplier; and 50% of the
Group's turnover were attributed by the Group's five largest customers
and approximately 22% of the Group's turnover were attributed by the
largest customer.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their close
associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the number
of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest customers of the
Group.

DONATION
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not donate
(2021: Nil) to charitable organisations.

RESPONDING TO COVID-19

In order to prevent COVID-19 from affecting the health of employees
and the normal operation of the Group, the Group has implemented the
following arrangements: requiring employees to wear masks during work,
implementing flexible commuting time arrangement to avoid crowds,
and work from home arrangement.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Shi Xing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ernst & Young KB TR BT Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
27 /F, One Taikoo Place BEH AR 2B/ Fax {85 +852 2868 4432
§ i 979 King's Road Rt —BE2718 ey.com
7 Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Beijing Health (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing Health
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 66 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

FRETEH
MRETFEASRBEESNERALE - BA/YHA
PG AR BREANEITR/EENER - %FF
AREHEAVBRRBEBETEITLEAESR
VERTRE  BEFTHZEFRREERENE

c BEH TS —FRAERE TN ELNE
AHALRER

BECBUIANBRE LY FA 52 B IREAE
FAENEE-HEENEL  BREZEFHEREE
FHEEMABMEE - HEM - EENETTEE
BRI REHFEHNGRSMBRREASERRL
R MR B IER - BERITEAEFNE
R BREHTAEHEMATHET - REMD
RAMBRRBERETE R REER -

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
BERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE v ENMAREETEE

Valuation of unlisted investments

B FTREZIGE

The Group accounted for its unlisted investments as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial instruments. The fair value
measurement of such unlisted investments was significant to
our audit because their fair value balances of approximately
HK$441 million as of 31 December 2022 was material to the
consolidated financial statements. These financial assets were
categorised as Level 2 or Level 3 in the fair value valuation
hierarchy. The measurement of fair value involved assessment
made by using different valuation techniques and assumptions.
EEBRERFEMBREENFEIRLH TABHEIELTRE
A BEMEENRGEARNFEINRZ CREESBEBERIN
NHEIRZ SRERE - X5 LTRENDFEFEHES
ZEMBEXN RAARN-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=1+—80 &%
FAREZ AT EEHRNM BEB THEEVBRARNEE
EX - ZEEREENATENMMEERTOERE_RRE=
& o NFEZEFEY RERTRGERM RERRAIENTE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R RN R A S RERMITE2.4 - 3%41 -
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We assessed the methods in the valuation models in
accordance with valuation guidelines and industry practice.
We compared the assumptions made with relevant
benchmarks and price sources and examined any significant
deviations. We obtained independent confirmation to
confirm the existence of the investment in underlying funds
and shares. We also reviewed the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
EERIBMERESIRTEEHFGEHERE - EEBERE
EREBRFRRZREETHER  VEEEANENRE - &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BERER

BFRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE 2 ENMEEENEE

Impairment assessment of other receivables

L 1th JEN R BB A

The Group recognised an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for other receivables at amortised cost and
subject to impairment under general approach in accordance
with HKFRS 9. The carrying amount of other receivables of
approximately HK$291 million as of 31 December 2022 was
material to the consolidated financial statements. Significant
management’s judgements and estimates on the amount of
ECLs at the reporting date were involved in determining the
recoverability of other receivables for impairment assessment.
BB IR AR R E B W IR ER B EEBR
(MTEMEERIE DB - ARBEEVBRELLESRIETH
—BARTURE - R-_ZE-—F+-A=+—8 " KEED
91 AER TN HMEYGIEE GV BREAMEBEX - B2
ERiRE Y EREEERSRELNERAE MAES R
FRRERT i EEE H b RUGRIR R AT = 1 -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ERERE RN RS M wARME24 - 3K23

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management and practices, and assessed the Group's
policy on determining ECL. We obtained and reviewed the
valuation established by management which is based on the
relevant credit risk of the debtors with reference to global
default rates. We also checked, on a sample basis, the
settlement status subsequent to the reporting period.

EEY BEEEZERERREENEBETTH LT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BERER

BFRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE 2 ENMEEENEE

Goodwill impairment

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard ("HKAS")
36 Impairment of Assets, the Group is required to annually
test the amount of goodwill for impairment. This annual
impairment test was significant to our audit because the net
carrying amount of goodwill of approximately HK$80 million
as of 31 December 2022 was material to the consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable amount has been
determined by reference to the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use of each relevant cash-generating
unit ("CGU"). When assessing the recoverable amount,
significant judgement and estimation were involved, such as
identifying comparable market transactions in determining the
fair value less costs of disposal of the CGU and estimating the
future cash flow and discount rate in determining the value in
use of the CGU. These estimates and assumptions are subject
to risk and uncertainty.

REEEGHER(T TR GER DECSREEZRE - EXE
BEFERMBRE 2BEELAIR - FERBIREEECE
HBEA RRABZE-_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—80 BEZE
EFENOABETHEAMBHREMEBEXN - AIKEISHE
T2EZERRLELEREN((ReELE N D 2 A FEREE
RAREREETHNRSEETE - HETRESREFFREX
HET AL E DI BIR L TSR S AE TR S EEEMHR
FEREERARGARKRBRERENUREUNEFTRSESL
BUNEREE - ZF M REREER R EELZE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HREREHN RS M mARMEE24 - 3Kk16

We obtained an understanding of the Group's reference
of market transaction and assessed the comparability. We
obtained an understanding of the Group's impairment
testing methodology and involved our internal valuation
specialists in evaluating the methodology, assumptions
and parameters such as discount rate, and terminal growth
rate of the relevant cash-generating unit used by the valuer
and the Group. We assessed key assumptions including
budgeted gross margin and growth rate by comparison to
the historical performance of the related cash-generating
unit. We performed sensitivity analysis, which included
assessing the effect of reasonably possible reductions
in growth rate and increase of discount rate. We also
reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Group’s goodwill
impairment.

EETH ESEBYETHEISNB2ELAEATLYE - BFF
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Tsang Chiu Hang.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEskHEMEEKER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021

—ECF —TE-—F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

st FHET FHT

REVENUE WA 5 166,484 203,776
Cost of sales THEKR (119,972) (156,785)
Gross profit EF| 46,512 46,991
Other income and gains, net Hiplg A Rz 58 5 36,864 66,447
Selling and distribution expenses HE DR (14,555) (13,783)
Administrative expenses TR (97,402) (119,095)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net EREERERETE (10,109) (7,030)
Other expenses and losses HipxE REsE (19,066) (198)
Finance costs [ELE= NN 7 (1,442) (2,066)

Share of losses of: PRLAT 2 518 -

Joint ventures kNG| (18,828) (1,495)
Associates /N (24,670) (16,390)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BREiAEE 6 (102,696) (46,619)
Income tax credit SR % 10 3,891 6,385
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FERA (98,805) (40,234)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income ¢ 47 & % X Bt 2 A& &

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt s FER THET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBR (98,805) (40,234)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hft 2@z, (FE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that HigHMngeER o EEER
may be reclassified to profit or loss in EE b2 E W (E1E)
subsequent periods:
Debt investment at fair value through other  FiBEMEE AR FE
comprehensive income: IR 2 EERE
Changes in fair value NEEEE) 891 (2,321)
Reclassification adjustments for gains EIANGER L G
included in the consolidated statement EHORAE
of profit or loss
- gain on redemption - BB 2 W (905) _
— reversal of impairment losses =Y pi=E4E - (601)
Exchange differences: BE 3 ZEHR
Exchange differences on translation of MEGINERFHEN =5
foreign operations (141,525) 48,914
Reclassification adjustment for a FNBINEB I BIRS
foreign operation deconsolidated AR B AR
during the year 34 (48) -
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign FRNHEBINETE 2 B
operation disposed during the year DIRFIE 582 -
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) 2 fh—E& & AR 2 HAb
of a joint venture 2HENE(EE) 1,412 (38)
Share of other comprehensive loss AEEE ATz B2 E
of associates [ (3,834) (2,000)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income HEBHEAgeEF B ER
that may be reclassified to profit or loss Zﬁ@i@ E18), e
in subsequent periods HER (143,427) 43,954
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that Hig iRt eEmsfER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in 2 Hfh 2 EE
subsequent periods: (BE) -
Changes in fair value of equity investments 5 Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁ@iﬁ%
designated at fair value through other 1@@%@2*& Txéﬁ']
comprehensive income N EEE (35,741) 12,263
Revaluation gain on transfer from property, EW% - BB MR EE R E
plant and equipment to investment WEMEZ Sl
property 2,446 9,830
Less: income tax effect B PSR (612) -
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that ~EEZHRBE I EHHEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in ?E/\Z/H\ﬁﬂiﬁ(gﬁﬁ)/
subsequent periods W FRE (33,907) 22,093
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME £ [£ H fin 2 [ (#518), Wiz
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MBRBLIE (177,334) 66,047
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME f£E2E (E18), W EE
FOR THE YEAR (276,139) 25,813
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income ¢ 47 & % [ 2

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

L 2 ERER

2022 2021
—E- 8 T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Loss attributable to: THIALFELESIE -
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZEPN (97,696) (39,410)
Non-controlling interests FEVER RS (1,109) (824)
(98,805) (40,234)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income THIALREERE(EER),
attributable to: W as 4 s
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZPN (254,408) 11,885
Non-controlling interests eI o (21,731) 13,928
(276,139) 25,813
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO FRAREBERESZFEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EiLgREE
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted EARNEE HK(1.61) cents HK(0.65) cents

(1.61)784L

(0.65)7 1L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

me BRI R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+—-F=+—H

2022 2021
—E-8F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt s FER FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 13 62,766 84,594
Investment properties wEME 14 150,720 138,317
Right-of-use assets PREEE 15(a) 412,460 470,073
Properties under development BRPYE 21 427,681 467,279
Gooduwill [k 16 79,979 79,979
Investments in joint ventures RE&ERAZKE 17 73,666 97,533
Investments in associates REE R ZIKE 18 144,844 183,623
Equity investments designated at fair value ~ J8EAFBEMEEUZEIAA
through other comprehensive income FEIIRZ Rk E 19 246,737 323,881
Debt investment at fair value through BBEM 2 EBE AR B
other comprehensive income R BRRE 19 - 40,331
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIA K EAth e W kI8 23 175,275 201,523
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 29 1,481 -
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 1,775,609 2,087,133
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories PR 20 45,363 70,731
Trade receivables EE SR 22 18,655 34,799
Prepayments, other receivables and TARRRIE  Eofth e W pkE K B
other assets & E 23 135,040 148,998
Financial assets at fair value through FHBBRARTHEIIRZ SRl
profit or loss BE 24 247,038 253,169
Restricted bank balances TR FIIRTT4AE 88 25 - 3,994
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY 25 193,726 239,136
Total current assets mEEERE 639,822 750,827
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade payables JERTE SR 26 21,745 46,424
Other payables and accruals E b fEN A K ERHE A 27 129,043 156,323
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITIER 28 25,747 36,693
Lease liabilities HERE 15(b) 4,744 6,223
Tax payable FERTR R 1,062 637
Total current liabilities nE B EERE 182,341 246,300
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEE A 457,481 504,527
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&ER KB & & 2,233,090 2,591,660
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ®
31 December 2022 —Z-—F+=-A=+—H

INEN RS

2022 2021
—ECF —TE-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
st FHET FHT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables H e 5E 27 12,992 3,652
Lease liabilities HESE 15(b) 2,255 5,452
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 29 74,183 85,937
Total non-current liabilities JEmE A ERE 89,430 95,041
Net assets BEFE 2,143,660 2,496,619
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the owners of [SYNCIE 2PNy Ea
the parent
Share capital &N 30 1,211,754 1,215,789
Reserves 1] 32 825,484 1,077,835
2,037,238 2,293,624
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS 33 106,422 202,995
Total equity AR 2,143,660 2,496,619

Zhu Shi Xing
L HE

Director

BZ

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

Gu Shan Chao
BEER
Director

BZ



Consolidated Statement of Changes in

GARNSTE

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

Equity

Attributable to ovners of the parent

BRATERARR
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through
Share Statutory Share Exchange other Non-
Share premium surplus option Other fluctuation  comprehensie  Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve resenve reserves reserve income losses Total interests equity
2ENEN
‘ AFEEL
Bog  weEe BEG L R ‘
i B it Eid Eid B ATERE 2R gt ks ik
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000
ThL TR TR TEn TEn T ThT TR Thn TEn TEn
(note 30) (note 30)
(BizE30) (Bizan)
At 1 January 2021 e 1215789 171,18 16405 98,514 B (24789) (6331) (812,314) 228183 29202 2491000
Loss for the year ﬁ Efﬁ - - - - - - - (39410 (39410 (824 40,234
Other comprehensive income/  MEH2ENE /(B
(loss) for the year:
Changesinfairvalueof s EBEM2EMENATER
debtinvestment at fair LERRENLATERY
value through other
comprehensive income - - - - - - (2321 - 2321) - (2321
Redlassfication adjustments  §tir A ERAUEEALNZE
of a debt investment at BN A TESISERRE
fair value through other (ERAERE
comprehensive income for
gain included in profit or
Joss - - - - - - (607) - (601) - (601)
Exchange differences on BEENEBNER 2%
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - Q8n - - 480 6043 4914
Changesin fair value of equity  EERNATESE 2
investments designated ot~ EaRANATESD
fairvelue - - - - - - 3554 - 3554 8,709 12,263
Share of other comprehensive  AE—FIAERTZEf
loss of a joint venture QEE‘ # - - - - - (%) - - (39) - (%)
Share of other comprehensive - AHEEERTZEM2E
lossof assocates BE - - - - (2000 - - - (2000 - (2000
Revalustion gainontansler 8475 - B Rk BEAZRE
from property, plant and N2 ERYE
equipment to investment
property - - - - 9,830 - - - 9830 - 9,830
Total comprehensive income for £R2ENGEE
the year - - - - 7830 9833 632 (39.410) 11,885 13928 5813
Deemed disposal of partiel R {EHENBATNHARR
interest n subsidiaries - - - - %) - - - %9 9 -
Dividend to anon-controlling - I—£3ARBTRERS
shareholder - - - - - - - - - (20234 (20,234)
Reduction of capital by anon-  —ZHARBREHRA
controling sherefolder - - - - - - - - - (9,639 (9,639
Capital contribution from a non- RE —43EERRFEH)TE
controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - 963 963
Transfer of share option resene. RERER ZUAEREERER
upon the forfeiture or expiry  1EEfR
of share options - - - 9649 - - - 9,649 - - -
At 31 December 2021 WZE--F+ZAZ1-R 1215789 171142 16,405 88,865 I119% 18,004 (5,699 (842075 2293624 202,99 249,619
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ® 4R & m & E) 3k
Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_—F+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SLEREARE

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through
Treasury Share Statutory Share Exchange other Non-
Share shares premium surplus option Other fluctuation ~ comprehensive  Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve account reserve reserve reserves reserve év;ﬂcg; losses Total interests equity
2EkEN
. AFEGEZ
Bk Rt EERH ] At EiRE SHEEY N .
R ] 1 il L il Ll ATERE F51] 3t FkiEs aEg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR THL TEL TEL TEn T#n T#n T#n Tén Tén Tén Thn

(note 30) (note 30)
(Hi30) (Ki&E30)
At January 2022 WoE-oF-F-H 1,215,789 - 1M a 16,405 88,865 31153 18,044 (5,699) (842,075) 2,293,624 202,995 2,496,619
Loss forthe year ERER - - - - - - - - (97,696) (97,696) (1,109) (98,805)
Othercomprehenswe incomelloss W\]%%@%/
forthe year: (F8):
Changes nfinlueofacebt  BEE2EARID
investment at fair value TSI, (R
through other comprehensive  BHIATERE
income - - - - - - - 891 - 891 - 8
Reclassfication adjustments of a ?ﬁ?\?ﬁﬁﬂm%ﬁiﬁﬂ
debt investment at fai value 2NN
through other comprehensive Fﬁ?‘ EEE‘]F"’HX
income for gain included n g &R
proftorloss _— - - - - = = = (905) = (905) 2 (905)
Exchan?e diferences on BEENERNELE
ranslation of foreign g
operations - - - - - - (127,933) - - (127,933 (13,592) (141,525)
Chengesin farvalue of equity 7 ﬁuﬂﬁﬁ@%@
investments designated Yas AT e ‘
atfair value through other JESRENLTY
comprehensive income 25 - - - - - - - (28,711) - (28711) (7,030) (35,741)
Share of other comprehensive AEREZ AR
income of oint ventures Wl - - - - - = 1412 o = 142 o 1412
Share of other comprehensie  SEBEAT B2
Joss of associates - - - - - (3834) = = = (3834) 2 (3834)
Revaluation gain on tansfer fom B4 » fﬁi%iuﬁ@
propery, plant and equipment  AZH
toinvestrment property,net of ‘ﬁ%n T %
tax - - - - - 1,834 - - - 1,834 - 1,834
Reclassfication adjustments for TLMEnﬂZ AHER
gain on deconsolidation of a 218
subsidary included in profit or 3&? A

g
loss (note 34) B - - - - - - (48) - - (48) - (48)
Reclassflcation adjustments for ‘U\?ﬁﬁnﬁgmﬁ
gai on dipose o suosidaries /2 ENEHA
included in profitor loss ?@iﬂ% S = = = = = 582 o o 582 o 582

Totd comprehensive income for ~ FA2ENELEE

the year - - - - - (2,000) (125,987) (28,725) (97,696) (254,408) (21,731) (276,139)
Deemed disposel of partial interest R/ELEHBANHA

in subsiciaries B - - - - - = = = = = (3,491 (3.49m)
Disposal of a subsidiary hE-BRELT - - - (58) - - - - - (58) - (58)
Dividend to a non-controlling ARk ERE

shareholder e - - - - - - - - - - (189) (189)
Transferof share optionresene.  RERERZNAERE

upon the foreiture or expiryof ~ SREREEE

share options ) - - - - (6,221) - - - 6,221 - - -
Share repurchased (note 3) BER(A(330) - (1920 - - - - - - - (1,920 - (1,920
Share cancellation HERR (4,035) 1920 2115 = = = = = = = = =
Deconsolidation of a subsiciary FaiMT LamEERA

(rote 34) E( MTE = = = - - - - - - - (71,156) (71,156)

Transfer o ai value reserve HERERb2EN)
upon the disposal of equity ATETIE RakE
investments atfarvalue through ~ 4BRLTESR

other comprehensive income - - - - - - - 7813 (7,813) - - -
At 31 December 2022 s __‘H A
=t+-f 1,211,754 -+ 1,713,251 16,347+ 82,644% 29,153¢ (107,943 (26,611)* (941,363 2,037,238 106,422 2,143,660
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$825,484,000 * ZERBEREREE iv? E7T BRARZEE ﬁ%‘ 1%
(31 December 2021: HK$1,077,835,000) in the consolidated statement of financial 825484000 (T -_—F+_-_A=+—
position. 1,077,835,000/&7T) °

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED dt 2B (R) ERA R



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= B4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FHET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHREBRERNE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax: BrFERESE ¢ (102,696) (46,619)
Adjustments for: A TR EEL I
Finance costs BbE AR 7 1,442 2,066
Share of losses of joint ventures DA ENT REE AT
and associates 2 &1 43,498 17,885
Interest income F B A 5 (14,432) (20,478)
Investment income "EWA 5 (11,621) (14,790)
Dividend income A% B A 5 (1,450) (1,354)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% -« BE MR EITE 6,13 5,154 10,348
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6, 15(a) 20,853 23,833
Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary —EME R N EEE A
ARz Weas 5,34 (63) -
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE -« BFE REE
plant and equipment BB 2 W 5 (548) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz e 5 (50) -
Gain on disposal of equity investment of fair HEFBEME A
value through other comprehensive income NPEIR EmRE
Z W 5 (1,373) -
Gain on redemption of debt investment of fair & [E135 i@ Bt 2 E W & A
value through other comprehensive income RNHEYIR EERE
Z W 5 (4,375) -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of an R—RHEE QR ZRE
investment in an associate SBE, (B RERIE) 6,18 817 (26,449)
Impairment of financial assets, net CREERBFE 6 10,109 7,030
Fair value losses on investment WEME 2 N EEE
properties, net e 5,14 4,879 2,409
Fair value losses on financial assets BBBRARNTFEYEZ
at fair value through profit or loss eRMEEZ A THEREE 5 6,972 3,473
Loss/(gain) on disposal of associates HEBESNRZEER/
(Weas) 5 (585) 4,471
(43,469) (38,175)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERA(Em) 25,368 (18,921)
Decrease in trade receivables FEUE S ERFUR 12,404 1,089
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables TR FRIE - Hofth 8 WURRTE K2
and other assets HEm&EERD 13,623 22,529
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank balances =R #H|R1T45880 L~
(3hn) 3,994 (1,777)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTE SERFIE M, CRd) (24,679) 12,100
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HEMEMNSRIERETER
accruals #h0, CRd) (12,968) 1,065
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net fE RSB (8,827) (2,013)
Cash used in operations KEFTAES (34,554) (24,103)
PRC corporate income tax refunded EiREFE RS
FiS 1,297 2,872
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEESMARSREFE (33,257) (21,231)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ¢ 428 & nE Kk
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P FHET FAExT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFBFERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B U F B 27,503 22,151
Investment in an associate TE—fHEEE QR = (1,194)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME - BEREE (1,146) (1,579)
Purchases of an investment property BEREME (15,734) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BELREME
and equipment A 62 21
Proceeds from disposal of associates HE — S QBT FRIE 1,479 3,252
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries L E B AR EHRIA (1,721) -
Purchases of equity investments designated BEEEAEREMEE
at fair value through other comprehensive Was AR FEFI AR 2 am
income & (17,290) (4,020)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BEHEBERANTETR
through profit or loss ZHERRE (641,161) (224,312)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEFBBREIATENR
fair value through profit or loss ZEMEEZSFIA 637,122 -
Purchases of a debt investment at fair value BEASBAHEMEEKENAR
through other comprehensive income FEVIRZ BERE (35,154) -
Redemption of debt investments at fair value ~ ERIFBEAMEEKEEUAAD
through other comprehensive income HESR BRERE 78,194 -
Advances of loans to third parties ME=ZFRANER (22,877) -
Receipts of repayment of loans to WEIBE=FERZER
third parties 32,828 -
Dividend received from an associate BB — B A R Z AR E = 1,354
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary —[EHB AT T EEEE AR 34 (19,335) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & EBIFTS,(FTA)RE
MEFR 22,770 (204,327)

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ¢ 428 & nE Kk
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P FHET FAExT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETBHRERETRE
ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution from a non-controlling e —BIFERRRAEE
shareholder - 9,635
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAEH S 15 (6,193) (6,249)
New bank loans FRITER 26,807 49,268
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (34,966) (43,24¢)
Interest paid EFE (1,442) (2,066)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders EF3EIE AR AR B 2 I8, = (20,234)
Reduction of capital by a non-controlling — B IEIRAR AR R B AR A
shareholder = (9.635)
Cancellation of shares Rzl an) (1,920) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEESIARERNEFE (17,714) (22,527)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRSEENRD FE
EQUIVALENTS (28,201) (248,085)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHE RREEED
of year 239,136 477,420
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net Rl 7 ek (17,209) 9,801
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND S#&BRSRELZEY
OF YEAR 193,726 239,136
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND B4 RESZENEB
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAEER 25 193,726 239,136
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FeReERERMAT RS
consolidated statement of cash flows RIReEEY 193,726 239,136
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAFRRKEEEHR
Beijing Health (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited bR EERGER) AR AR ([ART]) ARHA
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares SRBHMRZIZARAR  HRHBE-F
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of ZoFPOAZ+RBRETEHRERIME
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 26 April 2002. RAR([EEAPT]) IR T - RRAIZE
The registered address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins it #b 5iF & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drives,
Drives, P.O. Box 2681, KY1-1111, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. P.O. Box 2681, KY1-1111, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands °
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively FA - AREREWBAT (FiE AEE )
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the provision of FRFREE A RFAE ([P E DRt ERE - BE
medical care, health care and geriatric care related services and REZBERBRES -
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
In the opinion of the directors, the major shareholder of the BZRE  ARREERFAILRERGE
Company is Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (“BPHL"), BOBRAR(TdERER])  bREZRE
which was incorporated in Bermuda, ultimately held by Beijing FETMAY - AIEREREEERA G
Enterprises Group Company Limited and the shares of which are R - HRRORE AT T -
listed on the Stock Exchange.
Information about subsidiaries ERAMBE AR ZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARl EEMBARZERAT ¢
Issued
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name registration and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R BRITZER/ KNFER
£ ERREELE TR BRAMM TEEH
Direct Indirect
B# EF:
United Win International Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong US$100 RAER
ERALES/BE LERI00ET
BE Fortune (HK) Investment Hong Kong/Hong Kong Ordinary - 100%  Provision for asset
Management Limited B/ B HK$600,000 management services
MR E(FR)REERARAA L1EMR600,000 T RRHEEEERS
Rosy River International Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong US$1,000 REER
RBELRE/BE LRR1,000%T
FRRH AR R ERAERAT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Investment management
(Beijing Zhong Cheng Hu Lian Investment 1 /Iyl RMB30,000,000 consulting
Advisory Co., Ltd *) HMER REEE R
AR 30,000,000

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R



Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AARKEEEHNE)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BRNMBARZER(E)
Issued
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name registration and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
Bl BRTZER/ KNRER
&8 oK EE L ERA BREEDL E £
Direct Indirect
E# R
IRERGEEEHNERAT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Investment management
(Beijing Huikang Enterprise HRE/RERM RMB22,300,000 consulting
Management Consulting Co., Ltd*) HHER REERHH
AR%22,300,0007T
EREIRERRERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Investment management
(Beijing Zhendao Health Technology B/ RER RMB42,900,000 consulting
Co., Ltd*) HER REER®H
AR 42,900,000
LEMEREEEERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
(Shanghai Chongyuan Investment B/ RERY RMB20,000,000 RERR
Management Company Limited*) HRER
AR 20,000,000
PRSECEERERAA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
(Shanghai Shenyi Enterprises B/ RER RMB43,200,000 RERR
Management Co., Ltd ) HAftE R
AR 43,200,000
EREEEERERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 82.24%  Medical and logistic related
(Beijing Inland Port International =T RMB199,095,322 property development
Logistics Co., Ltd.*) HftER BELDTHENELRR
AR#199,095,3227¢
FTREREERABRAA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 60%  Trading of geriatric care
(Beijing Vissam Prosperity Furniture HE/ AR RMB50,000,000 related furniture
Limited*) HRER BEERERM
AR 50,000,000
TRRERRRABRATA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 60%  Trading of geriatric care
(Beijing Kangai Geriatric Furniture HRE /AR RMB20,000,000 related furniture
Co, Ltd*) AR BEERERM
AR 20,000,000
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

REARKEEER (F)
EERHEARZER ()

Issued
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name registration and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
Bl BRTZER/ KARIER
&8 oK EELE ERRA BEEDL TEES
Direct Indirect
B# R
EfmRREAGREEZRHBERAR  PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 55%  Provision of geriatric care
(Wuhu Fuling Golden Sun Health Care e /B A, RMB2,000,000 services
Service Company Limited*) HRER RUEZRS
AR 2,000,007
REEREXRHEREERAA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 60%  Property Development
(Dali Guangchen Real Estate Development — F &,/ B, RMB30,000,000 MERY
Co,, Ltd ) AR
AR %30,000,0007
LR RERR AR AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Property development
(Shanghai Qiyue Health Technology B/ RER USD20,000,000 MERE
Co., Ltd.*) AR
20,000,000% 7T

* For identification purpose only

# These companies are registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

under PRC law.

Other than United Win International Corporation, BE Fortune (HK)
Investment Management Limited and Rosy River International
Limited, all the above subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies
registered in PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 REPEE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and debt investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income which have been measured at fair
value. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

General, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

RZEEBVBBRRIRET SIS
(BAEMAE NBEMNEEMITREE
A([BBMBHREEN D (ERINEEME
FRMBWMEEN  BEGHER(EEE
AHEA k) AR ARG RARE
BRBRIIZ WERERE - ZFMBH]RE
ERBEELKAERER - HRAFERHE
EIREYE  BBEEUARTEIIRZ SR
BE  HEAEBEMEEKENATET
BRz i E BB R MR E RS IA R FE
SRR 2 BRERERRID - RFREMIBEI|ERIA
BB 25 - MEk=AERAN - A
HETABEREOIAN TR -

mER%E

BAMBHERBEARAREWNBARES
R F+ A=+ —HUEFENMBR
- MBARANAREEXEELFHNE
B(ERABEER) - 2AKEE2EKRE
HEMEBMAIERESAZRE% - ThE
BRI EHSNEN (AR FAEE
BRI EHRIBBERNEE MR A E
R EZEORET - AR AR -

—RME - BRAZBRFREGRIESIE -
AR R EERLEEET I NREHRKS
BURRSSRLIER - RIAKERFEEES
BEHREHROENFSER—IIEES
ERER - B4

(@) BEERBEHREMEBEZFRAANAGHZ
B

b) EMENRBPIELNERN &
(@ AKENREEIEEREE -
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive loss is reclassified to
profit or loss or accumulated losses, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first

time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and

HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@)  Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting (the "Conceptual Framework”) issued
in June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
business combinations that occurred on or after 1 January
2022. As there were no business combinations during the
year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

(b)  Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of items
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being
available for use, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were identified.
Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

J HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As
there was no modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.3

—Eo—F+-A=t+—HIEFE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
And HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts'

Insurance Contracts'->

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)*

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)f

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption.
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
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2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and
2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion.

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023.

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into
after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January
2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, in particular the determination over whether
an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement
of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with
future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity's financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting
the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred
tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity
as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERHEE

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in profit or loss and other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint venture is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

EBaHREE(E)

BTN AR NEERRE —TERAR
—IEEEBIE - MMmEHTZREHNGENE
EXER AEERRECUWBE XY -

REBEWBE - BEBRSREAOER - I
BB 2 OB R BB GBS & A
BEREFENSHEE  NWETEESHER
EE o WEESBWKE A EARTRTRA
ALTETEA -

HEBAHASDEERER - ERFANRAR
EREIRWEAN D FEENTE  ELEN
Ef RS E RN R R RER

WS BENTMRARESARBEROR
HEER - IARERDBREEXRAET
BATERER  ERATENESECRIERE
R IAREROERESR  AITHEEE
AtE  RENGSEST ARRT -

REVISLRAGTE - BNEER(E AR
IR R MY B AN SR B AR A MUK
B A A (A A B 2 MR L P
AR B EFEKIREG BN o MZ
REXEMAR ZMERMKEFEENR
FE AREZEREEGRERNBaBRAZRE
Wi s -

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

89



90

Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income and debt
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of disposal groups
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4% to 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%

10% to 33%
19% to 32%
6% to 19%

Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are
not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Leasehold land 47 to 51 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

98

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessees are accounted
for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are also recognised as other income in profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

104

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

TRAE

LR E

ERABERVIFERE DR ERREFKIA
K ENFOR(AER)

e eRBEVSRATERR - BERRE
FARENFIRRREREBER HRA

AEENEREBERENES KRR REM
FEMTFIRIA S it BERTTHE K

R E
EREBEZRETERANUT A

HEEK A EA TR & (B
RNFHERE - 5t BRITIERERIAERA
FORRBIHKAE - WARNFELTE
Ko RERT - RIRARASIRR o Was &
BENAER HEREEB BRI R H#HE
P B tER -

HBSHRA RS AR B ST I S0 (B S AR A
ERMEBEEONERIRATAESH -
BRI ABRRTORERANA -

£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

105



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

106

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and comprise construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable to
such properties incurred during the development period.

Properties under development which have been pre-sold or
intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one
year from the end of the reporting period are classified under
current assets. On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
furniture for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

108

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

110

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally upon completion of the installation services.

Warranty obligations

The Group provides warranties that are either solely
assurance-type warranties or extended warranties, which
are service-type warranties, to a customer. The service- type
warranties can be obtained from other providers and do not
significantly customise or modify the products.

Contracts for bundled sales of goods and service-type
warranties are comprised of two performance obligations
because the promise to transfer goods and provide service-
type warranties are capable of being distinct and separately
identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction price is allocated
based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of goods and
service-type warranties.

Revenue from service-type warranties is recognised over
time, using a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

Rendering of services

The Group provides medical care, health care and geriatric
care related services. These services are rendered on their
own contracts with customers. Revenue from the rendering
of services is recognised over the time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

114

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates several share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) and consultants of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees and consultants render services in exchange
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in equity-
settled share-based payment expenses together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

116

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those eligible
Hong Kong employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBERBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the consolidated financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries and associates
operating in Mainland China is the currency other than Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transaction.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rate for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

(a)  Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale of

goods and installation services

The Group provides installation services with the sale of
goods to customers. The Group assessed that the installation
services bundled together with the sale of goods are not
distinct and are not separate obligations under HKFRS 15,
because the customers only accept goods at the point when
goods are delivered and installation is completed. Therefore,
the adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have an impact on the
timing of revenue recognition.

(b)  Identifying warranty obligations in sale of furniture products
The Group generally provides for warranties for general
repairs of 3 to 5 years based on statutory requirements and
product features, and does not provide extended warranties
in its contracts of sale of furniture products with customers.
However, in certain non-standard contracts, the Group
provides extended warranties. the Group assessed that
such warranties are service-type warranties and therefore,
are accounted for as separate performance obligations to
which the Group allocates a portion of the transaction price.
Revenue is subsequently recognised over time based on the
time elapsed.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into leases on its investment property
portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
building and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the building,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2022 was HK$79,979,000 (2021: HK$79,979,000).
Further details are given in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables

The policy for provision for expected credit losses on trade
and other receivables of the Group is based on an ECL model.
A considerable amount of estimation is required in assessing
the available information which includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts future economic
conditions to estimate the ECL. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables and other receivables in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022 were HK$18,655,000
(2021: HK$34,799,000) and HK$310,315,000 (2021: HK$350,521,000),
respectively, further details of which are set out in notes 22 and 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

B REETHE R A5 ()

fhET T REM
RBEMRASRKIEHNEBRBRRLEME
ST ERSMNT - ZEREEHE
AR T —MBREFENEEMABREEL
RERAE -

B E
AEEELEGF-RETHEEERE - It
R EE R REELEN 2 FA
BE - ArHEAEEEREAERGTRER
CEABMZERKBSRE  WEREE
BRI UHEZSHeRECHE B
BR - —F+-_A=+—BZEEE
#79,979,0008 7L (ZF = —4F : 79,979,000
BIT) o E—HHIBENGE WIS HRERM T
16 °

JEWE AR R A it Y IB R TE B 15 B
B E
RNEEAARKE SRR B A EREIER
TBHEEBEREEE HERESEEEE
BA o REHEBER BT EMG - WK
KFEBIAR FRAC AR I 2 B R P LB RS
DREMT  WHBHEEBBETHE -
M-ZT-—F+-—A=+—0  SAH%ENK
MEPNEWE 5 RN H b fE UGB BR
FE{E 5 Bl £18,655,000 BT (—FE = —4 :
34,799,0005% 7T ) % 310,315,000 7T ( — &
——% : 350,521,000/ 7T) + HE—FFE
BN GR A B ERER AN 22 %23

£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

121



122

Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@)  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences; and

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and condition, and
using discount rates that reflect current market assessments
of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2022 was HK$150,720,000 (2021: HK$138,317,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement,
are given in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2022 was approximately HK$287,583,000 (2021: HK$234,770,000).
Further details are contained in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair values of unlisted equity investments and derivative
instruments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on the
quoted price from the relevant institutions, its net asset value
or a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies (peers) and
select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group
classifies the fair values of these investments as Level 2 or Level
3. The derivative instrument has been valued using Black-Scholes
model with the underlying equity value determined under market
approach. This valuation requires the Group to make estimates
about the underlying equity value, risk-free interest rate, volatilities
and dividends yield.

The fair values of the unlisted investments and derivative
instruments at 31 December 2022 were HK$440,815,000 (2021:
HK$529,335,000) and HK$nil (2021: HK$1,148,000), respectively.
Further details are included in notes 19, 24 and 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has one single operating
and reportable segment, which is the provision of medical care,
health care and geriatric care related services and products. All
of the Group's operating results are generated from this single
segment. During the year, 100% (2021: 100%) of the Group's
revenue was generated from customers in Mainland China,
and over 78% (2021: over 78%) the Group’s non-current assets,
excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets, were
located in Mainland China.

Revenue of approximately HK$37,197,000 (2021: HK$26,916,000)
was derived from sales of goods to a single customer, including
sales to a group of entities which are known to be under common
control with that customer.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA Htt AR KR FEE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZ DT
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers RKEBEPEHZWA 166,484 203,776
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information 0] A ER
For the year ended 31 December BE+-—A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E-—F T
Total Total
e #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Type of goods or services RERSBRBERE S
Sale of goods HEE M 157,854 195,194
Rendering of services RULARTS 8,630 8,582
Total revenue from contracts with customers  2REEF A # 2 A KLEE 166,484 203,776
Geographical markets HETS
Mainland China AR B A i 166,484 203,776
Total revenue from contracts with customers ~ 2RE&FE K2 WA LBEE 166,484 203,776

During the year, the Group recognised revenue of
HK$36,325,000 (2021: HK$28,394,000) that were included
in the contract liabilities in respect of the sale of goods of

the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from

performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

FA - AREBRBNRERDEA
FHRHEEMZANABYRNBE
HMHERAAKRBEEERNBOEEN
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the completion
of installation of goods and payment is generally due within
30 to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
a partial payment in advance is normally required.

Rendering of services
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due upon completion
of the service period.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December are as follows:

WA - E Al R s AR ()

REEFEHNZWA(E)

(ii)

JBRIEIE
FHEREERBENETNERBER
™

HEER
BHETTINE ML ETREFENR &
—R AR 308 E0H AEIBIX T -
HEEP — AR BOFIE -

IR
BB LRI ARF OB A » 3K
BRI IR AT AE R BIE -

RTZA=+—H  HEEHRTREL
BECRERE D RER) R BE
BREEENT

2022 2021

—B-CF T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER THET

Amounts expected to be recognised as TEHRRAWMAZ &5 -

revenue:

Within one year —FR 164,696 137,740

After one year —F1& 3,568 42,474

168,264 180,214

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected to
be recognised as revenue after one year relate to sales of
goods and warranty services included in sale contracts, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within
two to fifteen years. All the other amount of transaction
prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.
The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

5. WA - Efbu AR s R A8 ()

(continued)
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P e FHERT FET
Other income HAp A
Bank interest income HRITHBHA 1,674 4,195
Other interest income HFEHA 12,758 16,283
Investment income of debt investment at R EBEBEMEE RS
fair value through other comprehensive ARAFESIERZ B
income HERIREWA 1,561 4,081
Investment income of equity investments at 2K B #E B HE AL 2 E
fair value through other comprehensive AR TFESIAR 2 #Ea
income WERIEEWA 5,397 8,568
Investment income of financial asset at fair 2R BB @B AR FED
value through profit or loss Rz emMEENKRE
WA 4,663 2,141
Gross rental income from investment REWEKEHEZES
property operating leases I ONEE 12,439 9174
Dividend income % B A 1,450 1,354
Government subsidies DEGEEE:L:) 222 95
Others Hh 1,557 426
41,721 46,317
Gains/(losses), net W (E|)  FE
Fair value losses on investment properties, &Y 2 R EFE
net HE 14 (4,879) (2,409)
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair BB AN T ES R
value through profit or loss ZEmMEEZATFE
&8 (6,972) (3.473)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of associates HEmME ARz ke
(E18) 585 4,471)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S EENS d e 50 -
Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary —RHNBRRTBELERE
AR Z Wz 34 63 -
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - KER
plant and equipment HEIEE 2 W 548 -
Gain on disposal of equity investment at i B A 2 E U E A
fair value through other comprehensive NPERZ ERKE
income < W 1,373 B
Gain on redemption of debt investment at ~ f&[BlE @ E 2 E R IA
fair value through other comprehensive NPEFR EERE
income W 4,375 -
Foreign exchange differences, net M W F R = 4,034
Reversal of impairment loss on investment #6174 — 5 & A F1AY
in an associate % & 2 mIERE = 26,449
(4,857) 20,130
36,864 66,447
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. BRBIAIEE

AL BB AIEEEHR, GEA) TH%

B -
2022 2021
—E-= B4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b FHET FAET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 115,404 151,977
Cost of services provided R 4,568 4,808
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB RRETE
equipment 13 5,154 10,348
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15(a) 20,853 23,833
Foreign exchange differences, net PE N =555 18,021* (4,034)x***
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of an R—EBE QR ZIRE
investment in an associate SEE,(BERIRE) 18 817* (26,449)****
Lease payments not included in the KRt AHEAGETHEZ
measurement of lease liabilities FAER= 15(c) 1,724 2,723
Auditor’'s remuneration ZEREM BN & 1,650 1,650
Employee benefit expense (excluding RERARAZ(TEIE
directors’ and chief executive's EERFETHAR
remuneration (note 8)): B (PFI3E8)) -
Wages and salaries ITERH® 34,847 36,902
Pension scheme contributions (defined BREFEIHERCERE
contribution schemes)** HRETE])** 8,535 9,342
43,382 46,244
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Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6.

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

6. BRBAER(E)

2022 2021
—s=-= T —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=g FET FAT
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of SREERE(BE
financial assets: A
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of EWE 5 EEFORE,
trade receivables, net*** (RE#E)
TR ER 22 3,740 (1,344)
Impairment of prepayments, other TAfIFRIE - HAbJE
receivables and other assets, net*** WoRRIa e B & A
BB F R 23 6,369 8,975
Reversal of impairment of FiAE 2 E W E A
debt investment at fair value through other NHAEDIRR 2 B
comprehensive income*** $& & B (Bl (B - (601)
10,109 7,030

* These items are included in “Other expenses and losses” in profit or loss * ZEBHFAGEBE REMEEKZRRKP
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive BN EAh R RER ] -
income.

d At 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited contributions available *x RZIEBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H8 KEBHLE
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2021: BRI FAR A B R R FE R RS
nil). BIR( =% |) -

***  These items are included in “Impairment losses on financial assets, net” o ZEEAFAGEERRAEMEERERP
in profit or loss of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BaEnr SmEEREBEFE] -
comprehensive income.

**xx% These items are included in “other income and gains, net “in profit or loss ok ZEBEFAGEEGEREMEAKERP

of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

REARN EMPRA R FE ] -
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERR

2022 2021
—s-= T4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FHET BT
Interest on bank borrowings RITBIZFIE 864 1,405
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE 15(b) 578 661
1,442 2,066

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 8. ESBSRTETHAEME

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and the chief executives’ remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RFEEESEERETETHABZMERES
BEAZZRARARNES TR £H
AN - BB R RUEHIZE383(1) @) * (b) * (o)
g ARAR(EBEEEFZZER) R
FE2EWREAT ¢

2022 2021

—EC-CF T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

Fees e 693 720

Other emoluments: Hig -

Salaries, other allowances and benefits #Fre  HitWEB R EWEF)

in kind 4,839 5,921

Pension scheme contributions RIRESET IR 175 179

5,014 6,100

5,707 6,820
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERFIETHAEME(HE)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHTEE
Total
Fees remuneration
e & 48t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAxT
2022 —E__F
Independent non-executive directors: BIYEHITES
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou SRIEE S 60 60
Mr. Wu Yong Xin ROKER & 60 60
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith I E 60 60
Mr. Gary Zhao FERI ST A 60 60
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp FRLESE 60 60
300 300
2021 -
Independent non-executive directors: BIYKHITES :
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou SRIBE S 60 60
Mr. Wu Yong Xin ROKFR A& 60 60
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith Eilp S 60 60
Mr. Gary Zhao i1l pyetasy 60 60
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp RASEE 60 60
300 300
There were no other emoluments payable to the REAREENBIFNITESHE
independent non-executive directors during the year (2021: NS (—E——F : E) o
nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &3 = M5
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERIETHAEME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and chief executives (b) BITEERFETHAE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
E2 -3 Bik&
He REYEF BE e B @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx FERx FEx
2022 —E-CF
Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun FTIEExRE 60 - - 60
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming* SRR B A 33 - - 33
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing MATEE S 60 2,205 139 2,404
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEBEE 60 1,782 18 1,860
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* G el 60 852 18 930
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi AR 60 - - 60
Mr. Siu Kin Wai mEELE 60 - - 60
393 4,839 175 5,407
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

8.

(b)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERFIEMTHAEME(HE)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors and chief executives (b) HMITEERFETHAE(E)
(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e 28 BiRe
we REMEF BEE Memat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THET FHET FAET
2021 —E-—-F
Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun FTIEExRE 60 - - 60
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming* SRR B A 60 - - 60
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing MR E 60 2,255 143 2,458
Mr. Gu Shan Chao FEBEE 60 1,820 18 1,898
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* YR o 60 1,846 18 1,924
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi R & 60 - - 60
Mr. Siu Kin Wai mEELE 60 - - 60
420 5,921 179 6,520

*

Mr. Liu Xue Heng is the chief executive officer of the Group. (2021:
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming and Mr. Liu Xue Heng)

There was no arrangement under which a director or chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year except for the arrangement included in note

(i).

* FBELEERAEETRER - (=F
T—F RRARERBIBELE)

FAMBESH T BITHABNES

R BRI E 2 2B (RN
aE) .2 ZHES)
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IERSHFEER
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRNIEERTREERE=428E%F (=%
directors (2021: three directors), details of whose remuneration T—FZREF)  FEMHESZFBEERR
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the EXHFS - RFABTMERSFHES
year of the remaining two (2021: two) highest paid employees who ZE—F  WB)(WIFARAESHE
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as ETBAB) ZH&FENT
follows:
2022 2021
—s-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREVEH 2,000 2,042
Performance related bonuses RIRABRATEAL 159 117
Pension scheme contributions RIREBFT B 141 136
2,300 2,295
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid BT T 5 EE B IEEE R IEE BT
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as BABHZRSHMES ABWT
follows:

Number of employees

EEA"

2022 2021

—E=-= T —F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 7T 1 1
2 2
During the year, no remunerations were paid by the Group to the FN - EEZXRERET EEMERAREE
directors or the five highest paid employees as an inducement WEERINE - 1EREEEIAREE AN
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of AR B & 00 BB Sk 1 ik RIR AL A FE(E o
office. None of the directors or the five highest paid employees FN - EEZX R LR T EEMENELR

has waived or agreed to waive any remunerations during the year. BEHREEAME -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX

10. Fi8#H

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Current — PRC corporate income tax BUER — AR B (b SEFRIS T
Charge for the year REEZH 6,726 1,789
Overprovision in prior years BT F R (2,594) (5,321)
Deferred (note 29) AT (KRE29) (8,023) (2,853)
Total tax credit for the year FEHBEK SE5 (3,891) (6,385)

Hong Kong profits tax

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no Hong Kong profits
tax had been provided as there were no assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year (2021: nil).

PRC corporate income tax

PRC corporate income tax provision in respect of operations in
Mainland China is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
estimated assessable profits for the year based on prevailing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

HEREB

REZE-_Z-_—F+_A=+—HILFE -
AR FERITERNEBE ST ERFEF
W BmBBEBRESRELBE(ZZEZ

FE)

R ATEH

SR B AR F L B TSR BUE
THRIBERBIRTED - 2B REOIER

—= —

At BRI RS MIRBER TR H -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

10.

11.

12.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax at
the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates to the
effective tax rate, are as follows:

10.

Fris®i (&)
FREARRREKXED M B QB M e A
B 2EEMEAE 2R AEEER A
R BIR BRI R E 2 BB S 2 ¥R
VAR B AR R BB IR B R 2 SRR IAT

2022 2021
—EC-8F T
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FTERT FET

Loss before tax BRI AR 1R (102,696) (46,619)
Tax at the statutory tax rates BATMETE A (25,019) 24.4 (11,336) 243
Lower tax rate enacted by local ~ FRZHIEEE H BIEVE

authority TS (289) 0.3 (201) 0.4
Effect on opening deferred tax Tt RiZ = ¥ HA)IE

of increase in rates MIEMTE - - (438) 0.9
Adjustments in respect of current B @B 1E HAfE BT HATL 1A

tax of previous periods B (2,594) 2.5 (5,321) 11.4
Profits and losses attributable to & & A A L& A A

joint ventures and associates FEAE 2 s I K 1R 10,303 (10) 4,233 (9.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax  NAJHIF 2 FH 2,356 (2.3) 24,225 (52.0)
Income not subject to tax BAGR 2 WA (2,012) 2.0 (21,001) 45.0
Tax losses utilised from previous B Bifl 2 B &8 A FiIA

periods 518 (182) 0.2 (80) 0.2
Tax losses not recognised REERBIEE R 13,546 (13.2) 3,534 (7.6)
Tax credit at the Group's RAEEERBEAE

effective rate TRIAE S (3,891) 3.8 (6,385) 13.7

The share of tax credit to joint ventures and associates amounting SERNBIRBERADhzHIAERE K

to HK$2,932,000 (2021 tax credit: HK$1,666,000) is included in
“Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year (2021: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of approximately HK$97,696,000 (2021: HK$39,410,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 6,069,935,709
(2021: 6,078,944,027) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

11.

12.

z%mm%nbié:*¢mﬁﬁ%
1,666,0005%75)5%%)\ rREZEEMER

WaR [ DAL RAI KB E RR 2 EH
RERIBEA -
3=\

EREVTAEERNFRNRNE@MEE(ZE
——F )
ggﬂ%ﬁ&%é%ﬁk%&%m
BREAGEYENEG QR EBRER
A AL FEEIB%97,696,000%8 (=
T~ —4 :39,410,000/87C) * U EARFEE
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &3 = M5
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - MERRE

Leasehold Furnitire ~ Computer Motor ~ Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total
By HENERE  HERRE EhRE a3 ERIE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TER TR TR TiEn
31 December 2022 ZEICEFCASTA
At 1 January 2022 R_E__5-f-H
Cost s 57,858 33,901 5489 6,345 6928 20,069 130,590
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAE
and impairment (11,904) (20,547) (3,864) (5:909) (3,772) - (45,996)
Net carrying amount REFE 45,954 13,354 1,625 436 3,156 20,069 84,594
At 1 January 2022, net of R_E_ZF-A-H-
accumulated depreciation TR EHTERAE
and impairment 45,954 13,354 1,625 436 3,156 20,069 84,594
Additions AE - N - 755 - - 1,146
Transfer to investment property ERTRENE
(note 14) (Rf&E14) (11,190) - - - - - (11,190)
Disposals e = - (53) (9) - = (62)
Depreciation provided during AT &R (Mzk6)
the year (note 6) (1,995) (1,538) (441) (239) (941) - (5,154)
Exchange realignment B3 AR (3,373) (1,087) (115) (63) (230) (1,700) (6,568)
At 31 December 2022, net of S
accumulated depreciation TZR=+-8"
and impairment M ZErERAE 29,396 11,120 1,016 880 1,985 18,369 62,766
At 31 December 2022: i
TZA=1t-8:
Cost kA 41,148 31,396 4,013 6,284 6,341 18,369 107,551
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAE
and impairment (11,752) (20,276) (2,997) (5,404) (4,356) - (44,785)
Net carrying amount FRE 29,396 11,120 1,016 880 1,985 18,369 62,766
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. M% - BERRE (&)

Leasehold Fumiture Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements  andfixtures  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
By HENEEE  GAREE Sk E ERIR ft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAR Tin Tin TR TR TR ThAR
31 December 2021 2 e =
At 1 January 2021 RZZ_—45-A-A
Cost A 87,167 26,362 4973 6,000 6,368 29,093 159,963
Accumulated depreciation ZMERAE
and impairment (16,744) (19,620) (3077) (5,034) (2,624) - (@710
Net carrying amount REFE 70423 6,742 1,89 964 3,744 29,093 112,862
At 1 January 2021, net of RZZEZ-5-A-R8"
accumulated depreciation M ZErERAE
and impairment 70423 6,742 1,89 964 3,744 29,093 112,862
Additions AE - 182 50 177 428 L 1579
Transfer to investment property ERTRENE
(note 14) (Mi&E14) 22313 - - - - - 2313
Transfer from constructionin -~ AERIRERZNE -
progress to property, plant ETES
and equipment - 10,155 314 - - (10,469) -
Disposals e - - - ) (19 - 21)
Depreciation provided during ~ FRTER(E
the year (note ¢ (HfiEo) (3818) (4,025) (683) (725) (1,097 - (10,348)
Exchange realignment 5 BE 1,662 300 48 2 100 703 2835
At 31 December 2021, netof ~ RZE-—%+-f
accumulated depreciation =0 REH
and impairment WERAE 45954 1335 1,625 43 3,156 20,069 84,594
At 31 December 2021: RZBZ-E+ZA
=t-R:
Cost A 57,858 33,901 5489 6,345 6,928 20,069 130,590
Accumulated depreciation ZiERE
and impairment (11,904) (20,547) (3.864) (5909) (3772) - (4599)
Net carrying amount FRE 45954 13,354 1,625 436 3,15 20,069 84,594
At 31 December 2022, one of the Group's buildings with a net RZZZ—F+_A=+—0  AKEHEAF

carrying amount of HK$14,176,000 (2021: HK$26,363,000) was
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 28).

— 1% BR B H B 514,176,000 T ( —F = —
F 1 26,363,0008 70 ) IEFERIBIEARIK
FAEBA—RIRITRVE 2 ER(HIFE28) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=

2022 2021
—EC- 8 T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=g FTER T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—HZEREA 138,317 105,038
Additions NE 15,734 -
Transfer from owner-occupied property ERAmE NMEAME 13 11,190 22,313
Revaluation gain on transfer from property, BYE - BE LR EE
plant and equipment to investment BEREME %
property Wz 2,446 9,830
Net loss from a fair value adjustment NEREFESR 5 (4,879) (2,409)
Exchange realignment M 3, (12,088) 3,545
Carrying amount at 31 December W+=ZA=+—8z2
FREE 150,720 138,317

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Beijing, the PRC. The
directors of the Company have determined that all of the Group's
investment properties are commercial properties, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the properties. The Group's
investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2022 based
on valuations performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited, an
independent professionally qualified appraiser, at HK$150,720,000.
Each year, the Group’s management decides to appoint which
external appraiser to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group's properties. Selection criterias include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying value of HK$21,269,000 (2021: HK$32,642,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 28).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 196.

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2022, all of the Group's investment properties
(2021: all) were categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2021: nil).

AEBEZIREMEBBUNTEEE - L8
KAtz EREE - REMEZNE - FE
R - ARREFEEARBMAREY
EREAYE - REBEBUEXZAERMBE
EEEFERRARETZMEE  FAEEZ
BREWMER _T__F+_A=+—HEfH
#%150,720,000/8 7T - AEBEEREFFR
EIMNEMERZAE  WREEBELREH
WEZ N - BURIRITRIET ISR -
BE  BUMNEBERFERKE -

REMEDRBEEHELETE=7"F
MRE—THMBABENRAMHERRME
15°

R_E-_—F+= H +—8 REEA

21,269,000/ 7C( = Z = —4F : 32,642,000/
TN AEBREMECEMIEARNAEE

Bz —RIRITRE 2 R (F5E28) -

REBNREME 2 E—F
"o

FHBEHNE196

DFEEBR
R-ZF__F+-_A=+—H ~KEHME
BREWME(CZE_—F : B BRRF
BERE=R -

FA E-ERE_RZEARERFET

EHHE - H*E}Efﬂi RE-ZFEAKEH(=F
T—F &)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the
valuation of investment properties:

14.

BEY=(H)

DFEBRE)
TRARENEMBEESEREEEES
N

Valuation Significant unobservable
technique input Range or weighted average
fHES % BERRUEHRGAE BENMETLY
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Commercial properties Income approach Estimated rental value RMB74.5 RMB79-101
Lk ES WasE (per sg.m. per month) AR¥7457 ARMETOZ1017T
e BEEAGTHK)
Capitalisation rate 7% 5%~7%
B &
Comparison approach  Estimated unit price (per sg.m.) RMB22,100 RMB23,700
HBOA that BRI ER(BFK) AR%22,1007T AR23,7007T

Income approach measures the fair value of the investment
properties by capitalising rental receivables during the term of
the tenancies at appropriate yield (capitalisation rate) with due
allowances for the reversionary value upon expiry of tenancies.

A significant increase (decrease) in the rental value in isolation
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
adjustment to the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

Comparison approach measures the fair value of the investment
properties by making comparison based on prices realised or
market prices of comparable properties. Comparable properties
of similar size, character and location are analysed and carefully
weighted against all the respective advantages and disadvantages
of the properties. Adjustments in prices of the comparable
properties are then made to account for the identified differences
between such properties and the properties in the relevant factors.

A significant increase (decrease) in an estimated unit price in
isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair
value of the investment properties.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ —& ——

15. LEASES

Ft-A=1—

BIEFE

15. EE&
The Group as a lessee AEBERFHEA
The Group has lease contracts for various land use rights and REERARE @E’]ylﬁiiﬂl@iﬁﬁ%&@ﬂ:
buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made FIEHESR - BREFEDL —IRMERFIAR
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease XEHEEHRET M %ﬂﬁﬂfl\%ﬁﬂimi '
periods of 47 to 51 years, and no ongoing payments will be made BRBEZE T HAENEGRR B TgHES
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally RERIFIE - BFOHEA—BNF=@EAZE
have lease terms between 3 month and 3 years. =%
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) EHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and REEFAERAEEENRMEIE
the movements during the year are as follows: g -
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
HELH BF st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FET
As at 1 January 2021 WZE-_—F—H—H 463,241 6,580 469,821
Additions =Y - 10,685 10,685
Depreciation charge mERX (15,836) (7,997) (23,833)
Exchange realignment RIS 13,352 48 13,400
As at 31 December 2021 and RZTZ—F+=A
1 January 2022 —t+—HER=ZE-—F
—H—H 460,757 9,316 470,073
Additions NE - 2,216 2,216
Depreciation charge mERX (15,325) (5,528) (20,853)
Exchange realignment BEE 3¢, 8 (38,440) (536) (38,976)
As at 31 December 2022 RZZ-_—F+_A
=+—H 406,992 5,468 412,460

At 31 December 2021 the Group's right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$383,084,000 were pledged
as security for the Group's bank facility, as further detailed in

note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZB-_—F+-_fF=+—H  &&
5 BR 1 42 {8 383,084,000 7 7T /9 £
HEEDIEIFIEAEBRITRE 2 &
R E—BFHBEIN NGRS M B #RE
Pi5E28 o
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE (@)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERFAHEA (HE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements AEEFANEESENREENIE
during the year are as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-= B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREE 11,675 6,712
New leases e 2,216 10,685
Accretion of interest recognised during the  FRE MERF S 1518
year (note 7) (BHH5%7) 578 661
Payments (DE: (6,771) (6,910)
Exchange realignment M 5, F8 B (699) 527
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HBZKHEE 6,999 11,675
Analysed into: IR -
Current portion MENER S 4,744 6,223
Non-current portion MBS 2,255 5,452
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBBNIMS N NEE P HBRE
42 to the consolidated financial statements. PisEA24 55 -
The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible REBEHAITEE S EZEAREA
rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases of office HHARBPAERNE 2 HERL AT
buildings during the year. BEEREEESE -
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15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE(#)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAHEA (HE)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases () MEZPHERNEERBIENT :

are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FERT FAT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use CRAEEENERX
assets 6 20,853 23,833
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 7 578 661
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ ER%2HATHE K #4 T FAHA
and other leases with remaining lease A+ A=+—Hs=k
terms ended on or before Z ANER B E At A &
31 December (included in selling BREMRAY (GTAES
and administrative expenses) RITEFAY) 6 1,724 2,723
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEERE
low-valued assets (included in BREMNAY
administrative expenses) (Gt AfTERFESZ) 223 -
Total amount recognised in PRIEm R4
profit or loss 23,378 27,217
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 35(c) to (d) FEBRSRHBENGREMIEREMN
the consolidated financial statements. FE35(c) 1K EE -
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of
commercial properties under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was HK$12,439,000
(2021: HK$9,174,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

15. HE (&)

REMERHBAA

AEERBCLHETHEEAETBEE
MEMITEYE (HE14) - ZEAENIE
F—REFALLNERES  YWRETH
{EHTAS /R - FRREBMERNES LA
512,439,000/ 70 ( —F ——4F : 9,174,000
BIT) - B EEHNE A PERRMTES -

RBEMR - RETAIHBELEHEE - K&
BAEEKEBEFARIREERANT

2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FET
Within one year —FR 6,036 4,781
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 3,210 4,001
9,246 12,289
16. GOODWILL 16. B8

2022 2021
—B-=F —FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

At 1 January: R—A—H8:
Cost A 89,246 89,246
Accumulated impairment ZiHRE (9,267) (9,267)
Net carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=T—H8REFE 79,979 79,979
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16. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwiill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units (“CGU") for impairment
testing:

o Zhi Jian CGU;
o Beijing Spirit CGU;

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs
are as follows:

16. BHE(E)
BB RERE
BREBAHDENEEESRENTHS
BB ([ EAB ) ERERS -
o EBSEABA
o UAFBEHSELBM:

BEREESEERRNSELEMMT

2022 2021
—E:=-= T4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FoaE FET FHET
Zhi Jian CGU BN EELEEN 0} 62,585 62,585
Beijing Spirit CGU IR EBEBRSEELEN (i) 17,394 17,394
79,979 79,979
Notes: MR -

(i) The recoverable amount of the Zhi Jian CGU has been determined by
reference to the fair value less costs of disposal of each relevant business
unit comprising the segment. In assessing the fair value less costs of
disposal of each individual business unit, references were made to the
valuation of the right-of-use assets which approximated to their fair value,
excluding any deferred tax liabilities initially recognised on acquisition
of the relevant business unit. Fair values of the right-of-use assets were
determined based on valuations performed by independent valuer at
year end using direct comparison method, which has used significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13).

(ii) The recoverable amount of the Beijing Spirit CGU was determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18.50% (2021:
18.50%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Beijing
Spirit CGU beyond the five-year period is 3.00% (2021: 3.00%), which is the
same as expected long-term inflation rate.

BRREELBUNAKESEIIZEMERK
0 ERH) BRI E B E LM A FER B &K
AEE - HESFEREBELNDFERL
ERAR  E2ZRAEXNTFENERES
ENHE  TefERBEEERELRD
IR EEERIARE - RREEED
RFETREBLIHEMNFREAERL
BORETHNBEMET  HefBEARTH
B A BB (ERRBBHMTRELRF3
SRR TEBREIMR) °

(if) IR BERSELEEMNMAIIRE S5 IR
HEAEEAEEY  FREGETERE
BREEEMEZ AFHVBIEEELZ
RERmEBAEE - BemE T8 ATH ML
BRAH1850% (=T = —4 : 1850%) A
REFAFHAUIIMIERBERSELEN
CHEERERRERA30% (T =-—F
3.00%) - HETEHR AR KGR o
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16.

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation for 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the five-year period are based on the long-term inflation
rate of the countries where the respective CGUs are located.

mE(E)

EENRERE(E)
W-E-—F+-A=+—HE T -—%F
+ZA=+—H  EERAEEREERE
FR% - TSR B S TR SR ER
HAEELRSREBAMBENSBEEER

.
%

BB F — PRI R ARIRHIA - AR
AR ERL

BREF-AIMBEAFHARRSRE 2L
RE - DASRSELBUMERRK 2 &S

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELQNTMNKRE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Share of net assets BIEEEFE 79,106 102,973
Impairment RIE (5,440) (5,440)
73,666 97,533

Particulars of the material joint venture is as follows:

TE2RERRMFBNT

Percentage of

Aok
Particulars Place of
of issued incorporation Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing  activities
AN RS Rz Ave
A% RO REXBH BERRER REE EBEEN TEXH
1121695 B.C. Ltd. ("BC Ltd") 8,334,928 common Canada 47.47 47.47 4747 Investment holding
shares JIIEYN REER
8,334,928 & @Mk

The above investment is directly held by the Company.

BC Ltd, which is considered a material joint venture of the Group,
is a strategic partner of the Group and its operating subsidiary is
engaged in the property-related operation in British Columbia,
Canada, and is accounted for using the equity method.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

17.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REEQATNRE(E)

TREMBC Lid R EMB QA M 15 E R
Z(BEReHREZ A AZRELHAE ¥
I RARNBEEEYER)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of BC Ltd and its subsidiary adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements:

TN

HERS

2022 2021
—E—— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSFED 14 18,971
Other current assets Hith e & E 394,529 418,310
Current assets RENEE 394,543 437,281
Non-current assets IEMENEE 119 129
Total assets BERE 394,662 437,410
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and other & @B E @+ TEIEENE SRR
payables and provisions e B A< R TE LA R A (5,789) (6,184)
Other current liabilities ERsasE (14,418) (1,825)
Current liabilities mEaE (20,207) (8,009)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding ERBSRAE  TREENES
trade and other payables and provisions AR R E At FE S TR TE DA R B4 (219,269) (225,087)
Total liabilities BEERE (239,476) (233,096)
Net assets BEFE 155,186 204,314
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the ~ EIAREBRA LA M H IR
joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REFHEERELLF 47.47% 47 47%
Carrying amount of the investment REREE 73,666 96,988
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REEQARNIRE ()
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Revenue WA 8,247 8,346
Interest expenses F B (35,411) (1,593)
Tax I8 (1,575) (1,918)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for FABBREEEBESRE
the year (38,568) (2,998)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:

TERHFFERNNBERNAEEE SRR

MEARBT TS E R
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Share of the joint ventures' loss for the year  E{EFRNA & A AIKEE (520) 71
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~ AEEREGEARINKREREEE
investments in the joint ventures = 545
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REZE QAT Z2RE

2022 2021

—s-= T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBxT BT

Share of net assets (note) DI EEFEME) 82,225 120,187
Goodwill on acquisition WHEE ZmE 314,015 314,015
396,240 434,202

Impairment A (251,396) (250,579)
144,844 183,623

Note: The balance represented the aggregated amount of share of net
identified assets acquired in the transactions without a change in the
status of the investee.

Particulars of the material associates are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of registration and

Mat - SHRETRAHRATARALEZEBH T HIE
WX Z U AT BRI F B AR -

TEMERRFEBET

Percentage of

ownership

interest
attributable Principal
to the Group activities

REE

FEiL A

EERAIL FEXK

Name capital business
AR,
=L R S R o 3 3 B
Beijing Sports and Ordinary shares Cayman Islands/
Entertainment Industry & iBA% Hong Kong
Group Limited RERs &%

("Beijing Sports and

Entertainment”)*
IRBEXEXEEARR

RETdEREBE XL D!

Shanghai Junbo Registered capital

PRC/Mainland China

25.07  Investment and operation
of the sports and
entertainment related

business
BERREEBAIEER
ES

20  Property development

Textile Co., Ltd.* S AR A HREL R B g, and management
(LBSEEMERBRAT MEERKER
or “Shanghai Junbo")
LEEgEEMERERAR
([EB%Es])
# Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange # AR PR R AT E AR £ Th

* For identification purpose only

Except for the shareholding in Beijing Sports and Entertainment
which is held by the Company, the shareholdings in other associates
are held through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

* (EXE Nl
BREREE R LR AR R AN -
REAEE R R 2 R BB R R 2 AN
BRRFEE -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Beijing Sports and Entertainment is a strategic partner of the
Group in the sports and entertainment related business in
Mainland China and Shanghai Junbo is a strategic partner of the
Group in the property-related operation in Shanghai, the PRC.

Beijing Sports and Entertainment and Shanghai Junbo, which are
considered material associates of the Group, are accounted for
using the equity method.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held 353,000,000 ordinary
shares in Beijing Sports and Entertainment which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. As Beijing Sports and Entertainment’s share
price continued to decline during the year, the Group performed
an impairment assessment and made an impairment loss of
approximately HK$817,000, being the difference of carrying
amount in excess of the recoverable amount of the investment in
Beijing Sports and Entertainment.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Beijing Sports and Entertainment and its subsidiaries
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

18. RBHEQA T ZRE ()

IEREE L RAEERH BN EE X
LXK ISR ER A - T DE%RS
RAEERTE_ BRI EREEENRRK
HEIERH -

IERBEX R EBRSE (RERAERZ
FEBENRR]) HERESAAR

R-ZZBE-_—_F+_A=+—0 Kx&H
HEAEILREBE XL (ERB A ET)
353,000,000 & @A% - \mRdEREEE b
ZIRBAERNEE TG - AREBETHE
HE - BYEHREEIE49817,00058 7T (B8R
AEEBEA I REE IR E TR E & 58
ZERE) -

TREBRIEREES XC K H B 2 R R B 75
ERBZ (O e R ZEAERELH
B WEGEAMBHRRAREEYRK)

2022 2021
—E-= - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current assets MENEE 237,268 349,782
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE  TRERE 149,256 178,690
Goodwill arising from acquisition of the W B N R PTEE A P
associate = 29,138
Current liabilities MEBE (122,201) (173,420)
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (8,716) (21,457)
Non-controlling interests FEERR (57,229) (81,605)
Net assets BEFE 198,378 281,128
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFE  TaEHE 198,378 251,990
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the NS BB & A R Az 2
associate: HER
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE 2 ERREL D 25.07% 25.07%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, AEED(hEE AR EEFE
excluding goodwill TEEEE 4,752 25,523
Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative Wi R 2 B O RETRE)
impairment) 49,556 50,372
Carrying amount of the investment REZERHEE 55,124 75,895
Fair value of the Group's investment* REEIRE 2 A TE 54,307 72,718
* Based on the market price of the equity held by the Group * HAREFEFENER 2 TE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REtENT2RE(ME)

2022 2021

—E-CF B4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Revenue WA 68,571 218,721
Loss for the year FEEE (66,424) (41,566)
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEE (16,501) (2,074)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEIHEBEERE (82,925) (43,640)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Shanghai Junbo adjusted for any differences in

TREMAR LERENRBERRE(D
ARG HRR 2 EMERIEL AR - LEES

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the MsImRNREESER)
consolidated financial statements:

2022 2021

—E-F - —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Current assets MENEE 10,200 2,758
Non-current assets IEMEBEE 454,868 482,533
Current liabilities neaE (52,372) (31,716)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (201,077) (124,945)
Net assets BEFE 211,619 328,630

Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the ~ ANEBEREEE R B 2 HER
associate:

Proportion of the Group's ownership REE 2 B RELLDI 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZERHEE 42,324 65,726
2022 2021

—=E—_= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FET

Revenue WA 12,527 5,778
Loss for the year FEEE (31,735) (30,390)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEBER (31,735) (30,390)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

TREAAEBEERFER ZBE R B2

of the Group's associates that are not individually material: BEREE
2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
Share of the associates’ loss for the year iR E N E) 2 FEEIE (1,671) (1,319)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~ RNEERIEE AR E 2
investments in the associates HERHEE 36,476 42,002
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

19. EREME2EWREUAFESIERZ

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ETREE
2022 2021
—EB-—F —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Equity investments designated at fair value ~ 8E AFBEMEEWEAR T E
through other comprehensive income: PBRZ ERIRE - .
Listed equity investment, at fair value RATEAEN EMEREE
Sundart Holdings Ltd. EEEEGRAT 4,880 9,472
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value: BRATHETEMNIE EMERIRE
Beijing Enterprises City Investment LRI R R E B R AT
Holdings Group Co., Ltd.*
(e R SR B A IR A F]) N i - 88,073
Beijing Financial Holdings Group Limited* IERERKREEERRAF
(EReEEEEEARAF) 103,831 110,084
Guangzhou Jinfu City Fund (Limited BNt EmEREREESER
Partnership) rE(ERE%) 13,411 -
117,242 198,157
Listed fund investments, at fair value BAFER = E@L_ﬁ:%%&ﬁ
AB FCP | — Global High Yield Portfolio AB FCP |- IR S aEHE S
AT RMB H Shares (AREEHEOAT 15,651 21,256
AB FCP | - Global High Yield Portfolio AB FCP | —IRIkm e &
AT US Shares (EROAT 3,063 3,818
HSBC Global Investment Funds — Asia ELRMINE RS — M
High Yield Bond AM2 AT USD Shares = ABEHAM2 AT USD 4,496 3,436
PIMCO GIS Income Fund PIMCO GISlizmE & 2,137 2,637
Barings Global Senior Secured Bond Fund BERNSTIEMRESED 2,798 -
Radiance Capital Investments Ltd. CEERREARLA
8.8% 20/23 8.8% 20/23 4,477 -
Allianz Global Investors Fund THIRIRIREE 4,928 -
37,550 31,147
Unlisted fund investments, at fair value BAFEFENELMESKRE
BE Fortune Diversified Income Fund SP1 S EZ TS E S SP
— Class A —f8RIA 18,530 20,174
BE Fortune Diversified Income Fund SP2 EEEEZ TR ESSP2
—Class A —$aRIA 68,535 64,931
87,065 85,105
124,615 116,252
246,737 323,881
Debt investment at fair value through other  FEiBE b 2 U AL FETIER
comprehensive income 2 EERE
Listed bond investment, at fair value BRAFEFEN EMEFRE
Radiance Capital Investments Limited SBERRERRAA - 40,331

* For identification purpose only
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
The above investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers
these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year, the Group received HK$1,450,000 (2021:
HK$1,354,000) from the listed equity investments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period.

19. EBEMEZEWRUAFEIRZ
SHEE(E)
B E AR MBI IS T AB B E 2
WS AR TEFIER - ERRAEERAZE
WEBMEMMNY -

RER > REBEAREARETERIZTED
R R E WE,450,00058 (B = —
£ 11,354,000/ 7T) °

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7€

2022 2021
—ECCF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Finished goods SURK i 45,363 70,731

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. BRERDPYE
2022 2021
—ECCH —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZREE 467,279 453,954
Exchange realignment P W AR (39,598) 13,325
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—RAZKEE 427,681 467,279

Further particulars of the Group's properties under development
are included on page 196.

BEAEEERPMENE—SFHIBTEHIN
F1968 °

£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

153



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWEZR

2022 2021

—s-= T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables EUE SR 24,601 37,371
Impairment A (5,946) (2,572)
18,655 34,799

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days. For
major customers, the terms may change in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

B R P —RATANFIRIN - REEEEIA
EENRBEEFIIEE SN - AEEX
FTEPZEEH KRB E0H - x
BEEPME - HIRATSERIBER A 4 2 IR
MEMES) - BREFPHRERDEER -
ANER B B EL R B IR PR UG IR M R BB E )
BHFIRRSRERETHETERN - RE
BRIEREAEE 2 W E BIRFAKXED
BEPRE  BUESEENEEMNERR -
REE W ESHENE SRFEHRFTA TN
EMmsEMEMZRER - BEE SRR
WAFHE °

RBERR - BREZEFRIEEZAHR
kBB E R DT

2022 2021

—E-= T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT BT

Within 3 months =@AR 5,462 11,646
4 to 6 months mEREA 2,796 15,589
7 to 12 months +tE=+=@R 1,800 2,529
Over 1 year —F Ak 8,597 5,035
18,655 34,799
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EWWE ZRF (&)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEWE 5 R R EE R B EE T

2022 2021

—E=-= T4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

At beginning of year RFA] 2,572 6,946
Impairment losses/(reversal of EETE, R ERE)

impairment), net (note 6) FRE(FMEE6) 3,740 (1,344)

Amount written off as uncollectible Gy =R NN e e (36) (3,213)

Exchange realignment DEE 34 R B (330) 183

At end of year RER 5,946 2,572

The increase in the impairment loss allowance for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was mainly due to the increase in the
impairment loss allowance of HK$3,740,000 as a result of the
deterioration of ageing profile of trade receivables beyond 12
months with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$14,079,000 as at
31 December 2022.

The decrease in the impairment loss allowance for the year ended
31 December 2021 was mainly due to:

(i) Increase in the aggregate gross carrying amount of trade
receivables aged within 18 months of HK$3,636,000; and

(i) Increase in the amount written-off as uncollectible was made
in respect of customers that were in financial difficulties or
were default in principal payments.

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected credit losses have also incorporated
forward looking information. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if ageing over two years and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

BHE-_ZT-—F+_-A=1+—RHItEERE
EEBEENEFERR T _F+=H
=+—HEEMm#AEE14,079,000/8 TTHIBE12
& A EKE ZERF IR - BEURE
5 1B B 103,740,000/ T °

HE-Z-—F+-HA=+—BIFENH
EEBRBHEROEZAR

(i) BRES 21818 AL TR EIE 5 BRFR
H#E(EIENN3,636,0008 7 : M

) BB RS A S R
0% T {0 A R A Bl R 2 28
s -

ARAIRBEBMHEREERNEIFR (K
A PTEEWE SRKER 2 MEAER)
PR E AL RAE L TR R E B e
B RETERREEER  BRESEIRD
RE#DEERRERLBHRIETD
Mo BEEEERTEHARMBELEER - —
RME - BRREEMFHRKE SRR T A
WSE RS TR BRI TR RS -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BWESRMR(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TXESRB R RARE N ERE S
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: BEREERMRER
As at 31 December 2022 KRB+ =ZA=+—H
Ageing
AR R
1to3 4to06 7 to 12 Over
months months months 1 year Total
—F mE +Z
=@A ANMEA +=@EA —FHE HEt

Impairment of credit ~ {EERBAE T
losses assessed by ZIEEEBERE
credit risk portfolio
Expected credit loss ~ TEHAEEEIER

rate 2.81% 3.19% 10.71% 38.93% 24.17%
Gross carrying amount 428K /(&
(HK$'000) (F#&T) 5,620 2,888 2,016 14,077 24,601
Expected credit losses TEHRE E/EIE
(HK$'000) (F%7T) 158 92 216 5,480 5,946
Impairment of credit ~ BEFHHEZEE
losses assessed EERE
individually
Gross carrying amount  ABREE
(HK$'000) (F#&T) - - - - -
Expected credit losses TEHBE B E18
(HK$'000) (F#&7T) - - - - -
As at 31 December 2021 WZE-—%+-"A=+—H
Ageing
BRES
1t03 4to 6 7to 12 Over
months months months 1 year Total
- e +=
=1&A 7 fE A +=fEAR —FUE 5

Impairment of credit  {FERRRAEAESFTHZ
losses assessed by EEBERE
credit risk portfolio
Expected credit loss ~ TEHAEEEIEXR

rate 2.09% 2.02% 8.90% 25.85% 6.88%
Gross carrying amount  428RTEI{E

(HK$'000) (F%7T) 11,895 15,910 2,776 6,790 37,371
Expected credit losses TEHA(EEE518

(HK$'000) (F#&7T) 249 321 247 1,755 2,572

Impairment of credit ~ BEFEZEE

losses assessed EERE
individually
Gross carrying amount  ZBERHEIA

(HK$'000) (F%Ex) - - - - -
Expected credit losses TEHA(EE 518

(HK$'000) (F#&T) - - - - -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. ENFE  HtEWREREME

OTHER ASSETS B
2022 2021
—EC-CF TET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FosE FHExT FET
Current: BNHA -
Prepayments TRt RIA 11,849 21,375
Loans to third parties MEZHER (a) 95,897 82,769
Deposits and other receivables e M EAMERFRTE (b) 52,740 64,584
160,486 168,728
Impairment allowance TRE B (25,446) (19,730)
135,040 148,998
Non-current: ERBE D -
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 7,897 8,628
Loans to third parties ME=ZHER (a) 102,703 134,934
Deposits and other receivables 1B M EAM R GRIE (b) 87,064 82,423
197,664 225,985
Impairment allowance BERE (22,389) (24,462)
175,275 201,523
310,315 350,521

Notes: BiE -

(a) Included in the loans to third parties as at 31 December 2022 were loans (a) R-ZTE-_—_F+-A=+—H it ARAFE=
of HK$152,703,000 (2021: HK$159,249,000) guaranteed by third parties FERRBEE=FERZE152,703,000
and unsecured loans of HK$25,533,000 (2021: HK$58,670,000), which bore BT (ZZF = —F 1 159,249,000 7T ) &
interest at rates ranging from 4.5% to 10% (2021: 4.5% to 10%) per annum. AR B 7025,533,00008 0 (- — — 4 -

58,670,000/ 7T ) « HE M EST F4.5%Z10%
(ZZ=—5F 1 45%%=10% )51 8 °
(b) Included in the Group's deposits and other receivables as at 31 December (b) R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H x&E@EZKS

2022 were mainly (i) interest receivables on the aforesaid loans of
HK$62,156,000 (2021: HK$56,229,000); and (ii) consideration receivables
from disposal of a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss held
by the Group of HK$34,624,000 (2021: HK$40,276,000).

T Eo At FEUGRIE = 2 B 4E () LIl B KA PRI
£.62,156,0007 7T ( —F — —4F : 56,229,000
BI) - RV ERNEEFAEBBEUAT
BB 2 & B & 2 # FE U (B 34,624,00078 7T
(=T ——% : 40,276,000 7T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

23. ANNKIR - At BRRERHEtE

E (%)

HAit RS RR AR R BB SN T

2022 2021

—E-CF T4

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

s TR FHET

At beginning of year REA]) 44,192 35,489
Impairment losses VERIEY g 6 6,369 15,000
Reversal of impairment B EIRE 6 - (6,025)
Exchange realignment bE A% (2,726) (272)
At end of year FR 47,835 44,192

The increase (2021: increase) was due to increase in credit risk of

certain aged overdue receivables.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by

BN T~ 1) IRNE T RER
Kig HR ) R R RO (E B RUBRAE I o

considering the expected credit losses which are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

REREHREBE BRABRIOLMA AT
BHEMEEERETRED - BIEXT)
R AE AR IR B AT &2 B R AR TR
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73 2% M 5+
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

24. ERBERUDFEIIRZEHEE

2022 2021
—EZCF —T-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT

Current: BNER -
Listed equity investment, at fair vale EERRE  mATE 10,531 5,948
Other unlisted investments, at fair value EIE ETIRE  BHAFE 235,940 243,938
Unlisted fund investment, at fair value JEEMESRE  ZRTFE 567 2,135
Derivative instruments, at fair value PTET R - mATE - 1,148
247,038 253,169

The other unlisted investments were made with creditworthy banks
in the PRC. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are
not solely payments of principal and interest.

EAbIE EMIRE TR E(EE RTHRITH
AT WoRdl DB ABBREBREIATENER
ZeREE  RAARHANESREWIEEE
BYNNASKRFE -

The unlisted fund investments and derivative instruments were IFEMESRERMTET AN B ABRIER
AATEYER @/ EE - JIRNEFIER

classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as

they were held for trading. =

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. BERBASEEYUARZIRHIERT

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES wEeR
2022 2021
—E-—fF —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTH 168,749 243,130
Time deposits TEHFER 24,977 -
193,726 243,130
Less: Restricted bank balances B RGBSR TSR - (3,994)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEFEY 193,726 239,136
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$166,512,000 (2021: HK$218,625,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between seven days and three months depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

The Group's restricted bank balances are used for the performance
guarantee in relation to certain sale contracts.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

25.

26.

RERREEBEMURZRFILIT
HEeR(E)
RIREER - REBUARE(TARE DT
B2 & RIBITHEHA166,512,000/870( =
T~ —4 1 218,625,000 7T) © AREART]
BHRERAREMER  HIREPBEANMINE
EIRIED  AREEE EERRMIETER
F o ARERESRERIEEITINER 5%
BRRITIHAREHIRAEMER -

RITEFIRRIBE T B RITFRNEETFNT
BMEE R - RHEMEFERRFAEENE
RIS F LN FLHE=1E AN TR
TR AR & B 52 B B A SR & BRER A
B o RITRBRRZERIRITERTFARIL
B R AEERIFNRTT -

AEBOZRHIRITESRAERETHES
HWERRBAIRE °

FE 1+ B 5 B
RIREEK - [ B IRFRIER T B 4
BRI ATANT :

2022 2021

—E- 8 —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FA&T

Within 3 months =REAA 11,904 26,170
Over 3 months =AU E 9,841 20,254
21,745 46,424

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms of 3 to 6 months.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73 2% M 5+
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HttERRERESER
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b FHET FAET
Current: BNER -
Contract liabilities aHaE (a) 56,747 68,337
Consideration deposits REZS 36,942 40,362
Other payables o 1~ R IE (b) 31,817 43,887
Accruals g4 3,537 3,737
129,043 156,323
Non-current: FERDER :
Contract liabilities aHaE (a) 3,568 3,625
Other payables H b e 1T 50 E 9.424 27
12,992 3,652
142,035 159,975
Notes: MisE -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AHBEFBNT -
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—E-— T —F —E-—fF
+=A=+-—H +=A=+—H —HA—8
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT
Advances received from customers & FREEAIEG
Sale of goods HEE® 56,747 68,337 47,049
Rendering of services AR 3,568 3,625 3,208
Total contract liabilities BAENERE 60,315 71,962 50,257
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver goods EREERREINEmMTKERRE BB TR
and long-term advance received to render warranty services. The increase RERBRBAWRNRBEAR - GHBEE
in contract liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly due to the increase in RZBEZ—_FR-ZT-—FHENN - HEEH
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the sale of REZFPEEEHEEEERNEHBATNE
goods at the end of each of the years. ERBFTIEM ©
(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of (b) HipfefaaRE - FHEHAE=EA -

three months.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73 2% M 5+
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28.

2022
—E-CF
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity
ERRFIZ(%) 38R

T EBITER
2021
—E-—F
Effective
interest

HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
FET BRFE%) paliif= FAET

Bank loans - secured RITER-BHEA 3.25-3.30 2023 25,747 4924 2022 36,693
—EC-=F ZEICF
25,747 36,693
Notes: MHsT -
(a) The Group's bank loans at 31 December 2022 are secured by mortgages (a) RZZEZZF+ZA=+—8 XEEHRH

over a building and investment properties of the Group situated in the
PRC with a carrying amount at 31 December 2022 of HK$14,176,000
and HK$21,269,000 respectively (2021: building of HK$26,363,000 and
investment properties of HK$32,642,000).

(b) As at 31 December 2022, no bank facility was pledged by land use right
included in right-of-use assets (2021: HK$383,084,000).

(0 All of the Group's borrowings were denominated in RMB.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

LR B IEF RIEE Y FEIRIBT R 2 R
TEFREAER T -_—_F+-_A=+—
A % 5l 14,176,000 7 7T K 21,269,000 7 T
(ZZ——f : 5263630008 THEF K
32,642,000/ TTHIIR B ME) -

R-BE-—#F+-F=+—08  #HERETH
BUGtAERBEEER 2 T AREEER
—Z——% : 383,084,000/ 7T) °

REBFRBERAARBHE



Notes to Financial Statements ® B &3 = M5
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EEBIH

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

BB EREERFRZESHMT

Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIESE
Depreciation
Depreciation  allowance in Fair value
allowance in excessof  adjustments
Fair value excess of relasted  of financial
adjustments related depreciation - assets  Temporary
arising from  Revaluation of depreciation-  property,  atfairvalue differences
acquisition of  investment  investment plant and through  arising from
subsidiaries ~ properties  properties  equipment profit or loss  restructuring Total
fEfRRL  BERRMN
EEANE FERERL  BBRE-  AVENER:
WEAFZ Bfy  HEfFE- NX BE  SREEC  RAEAN
LYEER  RENE REUE kR AVEER ERMER Eh)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
G4 TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL TEL TEL
At January 2021 R-Z--5-A-F 67,049 9,547 1,90 34 1,966 6,583 8,779
Deferred tax charged/{credited) FRIIRE/(5rA) &
to profit or loss during the year  BIEERVE 10 (2317) (602 @9 (116) 562 (1,669) (4,621)
Exchange differences EfzE 1933 70 133 8 66 166 3779
At31 December 021and ~ RZEZ-F
1 January 2022 TZR=+-Hk
“E-CE-A-H 66,665 9,215 2,147 236 2,59 5,080 85,937
Deferred tax credited toprofit  FRET ABRIELTTR
or loss during the year 10 (2,242) (787) (464) (112) (1,261) (1,615) (6,481)
Exchange differences EREE (5,561) (190) 1,029 (16) (170) (365) (5,273)
At 31 December 2022 g Sk
T-A=1+-A 58,862 8,238 2,112 108 1163 3,100 74,183

£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

163



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. IRIEBIIE (M)
Deferred tax assets BEAEBIEEE
Impairment of
financial
assets Total
cREE
E st
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=g FHT FET
At 1 January 2021 RZZE—_—F—H— 1,744 1,744
Deferred tax charged to profit or FANRBBRE %RIE
loss during the year 10 (1,768) (1,768)
Exchange differences ME 3 FE 24 24
At 31 December 2021 and RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2022 —E-_—F—A—H - -
Deferred tax credited to profit or FARFT A B ARERIE
loss during the year 10 1,542 1,542
Exchange differences ME 3 2 5 (61) (61)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H 1,481 1,481
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of RS B 7 AR B P 3 EE A2 287,583,000/ 7T (=
HK$287,583,000 (2021: HK$234,770,000) that will expire in one to T = —4F 1 234,770,000/ 7T ) < FRIEESE
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. AE—ERFAEHERRERTEF o
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the WARSELATIE B ERIELERIBEE ¢
following items:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Tax losses BBER 287,583 234,770
Deductible temporary differences AREREER 20,987 8,482
308,570 243,252
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the R A EI8 B #0452 1 AT (K 85 1 R B s
above items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits Fl o MW RFA LTEE BRIELEHEEE -

will be available against which the above items can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EIERIE (1)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. There were no
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RIEFBEMERE  REIBEIEES
TR A A B AR S 2 SNVE 1 E R R B
W10%TEIH - BREAREA ST NF—A
—BRER WEAR-_ZEZTLF+=A
=+ —BEMEE BT o HPBEIAHbEIN
B EEE R AR AT AR ERL
AHRBRTEINR R - AEE/EAL X
#5%K10% © ALt - REEERZFRF
B B AR TN NF—A—
AfES 2 BFMD IR EHZFEIF

MW-E-—F+-A=+—H A&EFTE
PAEEEFRBENK OB AR« &%
NE RS A RBRRTENR AR E L& F
BRELEHTE - AAREERE  LENE
NE - BEAE REE QTN BRI
ZERANEETIRN - RZE_—F+=A1
=+—H - WEAEPE R E R T
BEMEANRFERAECHHABNHY
BrESE(ZE-—F ) -

A B A E B ROR A 8 RS BRSPS
T o
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
Shares g
2022 2021
—s-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT
Authorised: VERE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000/% & AR E &
HK$0.2 each (2021: 10,000,000,000 028z EBR(ZE_—%F -
of HK$0.2 each) 10,000,000,0000% &= A% EI &
0.2#7T) 2,000,000 2,000,000
2022 2021
—ECCF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
6,058,772,027 ordinary shares of 6,058,772 027H“kﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
HK$0.2 each (2021: 6,078,944,027 028 Tz EBR(ZE_—%F -
of HK$0.2 each) 6,078,944,027 B Z 3 EE
0.2%7T) 1,211,754 1,215,789
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as PAN/NCT S %N = I N
follows:
Share
Number of premium
shares in issue  Share capital account Total
ERTRAEE B BRDBER st
‘000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk FHT FHT FAT
At 1 January 2021 and RZE-—F—HF—AkK
31 December 2021 —E—H+-A=+—H 6,078,944 1,215,789 1,771,142 2,986,931
Share repurchased EAE ) (20,172) (4,035) 2,115 (1,920)
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZF+-A=+—H 6,058,772 1,211,754 1,773,257 2,985,011

The Company purchased 20,172,000 of its shares on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$1,920,000
which was paid wholly out of accumulated losses in accordance

with section 257 of the Hong Kong Co

mpanies Ordinance. The

purchased shares were cancelled during the year and the total
amount paid for the purchase of the shares of HK$1,920,000 has
been charged to retained profits of the Company.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

N EIRE S A TR B H20,172,0008% A%
7 #R(E51,920,0008 T » RIBEFBELQ
AHEBI B 25716 2 BUA BRHE B T - ATEE
BERORFENGEH - BERMAT /R
1,920,000 7T E A A RIREE /@ A A F0Bk o



Notes to Financial Statements ® B/ f3rZ< MI 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

31.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES

Share option schemes

Effective from 24 May 2013, the Company operated a share
option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) for the purposes of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the 2013 Scheme included (i) any employee or proposed
employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but not any non-executive director) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest; (i) any non-
executive director or proposed non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier or potential
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (iv) any customer or potential customer of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides
or will provide research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued or proposed to be issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vii) any adviser (professional
or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (viii) any joint venture partner or business alliance that co-
operates with any member of the Group or any Invested Entity in
any area of business operation or development.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the 2013 Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company to each participant
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit was subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

31.

LR B ER A wEEE
B E
ARARR-E—=FRA - TEOBAMIRETT
—IEERERE( ZZ—=FE) B
AHAEEEBIFLER A ERZEER
HEBNOE - — T =FHEAER2HE
EBRE() A A B R EA M E R B S A
SEIMKERRFAEE AR D E
B(REER ] EAEEIRTEER (TH
ERIGE - RREMNTES  BETER
FERITER) (AR A HEEFMB AR
SHAEMFREEBEMIFNTEFTHIREIFHN
TER(BRBIFATES) : (ALK
E{ERIK B A RS AR A BRI el AT A
REE MR EMH-ER  (WAKHE
HEMBEEERZERAFFIET, « (E
REBSUEAIRE BRI RSB IR MR -
B sl B B Se R 2 (E M AL E R (vi)
REBERKERARHEARETR 2R
FAREEERKE QR REIRERRDE
TRBBETESFZHEA ¢ (VilAKEEM
REARSEMEREERZ EREBFHEL
EBHERZBAAN(BRLEM)NER - &
(vii) R AR EE AL E AR EMREE R
REMEFLERBXERAIEZAERR
B EBEE -

RER2EARE - RIE—F—=F515
RARBEAEMERET S RER20E
AR 2 BRENTTERN THIT 2R
MR THEEAERARREHITRA
1% ° (B — F R M B PR &8 2 FE A2
AR R ARG HLE
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

31.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES
(continued)

Share option schemes (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director,
or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company'’s shares as at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, were subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share
options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares.
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31. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES

31. LR HERAHEEE)

(continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the 2013

Scheme during the year:

B R 81 ()
FR - ZFE-=FAHEETHARITEZBR
T -

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options

hnfEF hnEFE
TEE BREHAE IEE ERERE

HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BRET T BRET T
At 1 January w—H—H 0.58 278,000 0.57 338,000
Forfeited during the year RER 0.57 (20,000) 0.53 (60,000)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 0.58 258,000 0.58 278,000

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

RIRE IR RITE B 2 TEE RIT
EEAEAT

2022 —2-—F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERHE TEEE> TS
‘000 HKS$ per share
T BRET
156,500 0.61 note (a)

HizE(a)
101,500 0.53 note (b)

Ft=E(b)
258,000
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

31. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES
(continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

2021

Number of options

31.

Exercise price*

AR n BB T 81 ()
BBRRESH 8 ()

Exercise period

B A FI{RE* 17
‘000 HKS$ per share
B SR
166,500 0.61 note (a)
BT (a)
111,500 0.53 note (b)
P 5E(b)
278,000
Notes: Pz -
(a) First 30% of the options granted were vested from 2 April 2016, second (a) EHIORREZEBRER—_T—RFNA=H
30% of the options granted were vested from 2 April 2017 and remaining BB FH0%ERER_Z—+FHA
40% of the options granted were vested from 2 April 2018. Upon the lapse “HEREB - MR T40%BRER T —N\F
of the vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 1 April 2025. MA—HRE - NEBHAME  BREE
ET_RFMA—BHAITE -
(b) First 30% of the options granted were vested from 28 January 2017, (b) EIW%EE 2 ERER-_Z—+F— A8

second 30% of the options granted were vested from 28 January 2018 and
remaining 40% of the options granted were vested from 28 January 2019.
Upon the lapse of the vesting period, the share options are exercisable
until 27 January 2026.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s
share capital.

In respect of the share options granted in prior years, the Group
did not recognise any share option expense during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 258,000,000
share options outstanding. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 258,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$51,600,000 and share premium of HK$97,660,000 (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 258,000,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 4.6% of the Company's shares in
issue as at that date.
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32. RESERVES

32. f#E

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 71 to 72 of the
consolidated financial statements.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or transferred to accumulated losses should
the related options expire.

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are required
to make appropriations to a certain statutory surplus reserve,
namely the reserve funds, from their statutory profit for the year
after offsetting accumulated losses as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations from prior years and before profit
distribution to equity holders. The percentage to be appropriated
to such statutory reserve funds is determined according to the
relevant regulations in the PRC at 10% or at the discretion of the
boards of directors of the respective companies.

Other reserves

Other reserves consist of assets revaluation reserve and capital
reserve. The asset revaluation reserve arose from the change in use
from owner-occupied properties to investment properties carried
at fair value. The capital reserve comprises the Group's share of the
equity-settled share-based payment reserve in an associate and
the reserve arose from the partial disposal of subsidiaries without
loss of control.

AEEZFREBERERAFEBEFE

EaREPHRET -

BRERE

BREFREEREHRTED RELABEREZ
NFHE - R R A M RAR M 2.4 0A B
MREMNRZGFTRER - EITHEABNE
Bt ZEBERERERMEER - K8
PRI - AR EREER -

EE BB
ARARRFEKIH N B R RABHFRE
EMEGRERETEEHEARTENBE
FE R ERE XA A AL
DIRED AETAERSERE(DHED) B
K o BRAKFAE FEES LB IR
ERBARRERIA10%H) L R S R F R AR A
MEFEMBEEE -

Hitv k&
HitFREREEERRBIELNEHE - B
EEGHREREBERYERRER/ER
HEIIRRCIEYE - EARREEASHE
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 33.
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of Beijing Inland Port International Logistics Development

BREAFERERNID ERH
BAE
I REERRYRARAR([HES ) RS

Co., Ltd. (“Inland Port"”) are set out below:

T

2022 2021
—BCCF —T-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Percentage of equity interest held by PR RIS AR 2 P E A D SR
non-controlling interests (%) AOL (%) 17.76% 17.76%
Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling 2Bt 2 IE4E I 2 ) FF S /5 18
interests (HK$'000) (F&5T) (3,559) 4,473)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling Rid A SRR E R A RET 48
interests at the reporting date (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 96,641 109,324
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information TRBREENBMTEER - FIREN S
of Inland Port. The amounts disclosed are before any inter- BEAMEA AR BIKE S EEAT ¢
company eliminations:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Total other income HAb U A 4258 11,972 11,527
Total expenses gt (34,256) (44,728)
Tax credit MIEH R 2,242 8,018
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the EBERFANZHEEELRE
year (20,042) (25,183)
Current assets RENEE 257,338 289,989
Non-current assets JEREEE 364,177 411,047
Current liabilities mEaE (18,639) (18,957)
Non-current liabilities JEREAE (58,861) (66,664)
Net cash flows used in operating activities CEEEFTAIR SRR (22,812) (10,772)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing WEEESE (AR FaE
activities 21,397 (172,919)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents e MReEEMR T8 (1,415) (183,691)
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34. DECONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 34. —REKBATTBHEEAR

RZZE-—FXA  AEEREAXEHEKRSE
E BRI & R HEMN S B AR
REESABOE(BERAE) Mg -
WZE G e AEBIESAATEYIEY &

In June 2022, the Group lost control over Guangzhou Jinfu City
Fund (limited partnership)* due to the loss of control over its
investment committee and hence they have been accounted for as
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss since then.

BEEAS -
2022
— g2
HK$’'000
FERT
Net assets deconsolidated of: EABiRA ANRNEETE -
Equity investments designated at fair value BERSBEMEARGEARTE
through other comprehensive income iRz I E 75,166
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TERTFRIE « Hofth MR IE R Bt B B 7
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFED 19,335
Other payables and accruals Ho{th e (< FRTE M fE St B P (25)
Non-controlling interests RIS (71,156)
23,327
Exchange fluctuation reserve e (48)
23,279
Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary —[E B AR T HBERE AR 63
23,342
Satisfied by: ATRBIHER -
Fair value of interests retained by the Group AEERBER AN TE 23,342

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

—HRBARTBREAARNESRREE

respect of the deconsolidation of a subsidiary is as follows: EWFREomaT
2022
—E-=
HK$'000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents deconsolidated of and ETBHEAEARNRE RRSEEY

net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in E—EHBARTEEE ARORE R

respect of the deconsolidation of a subsidiary ReFEMFRL (19,335)
*  For identification purpose only * EHEER
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i

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. FERERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEFBEEXRSH
During the year, the Group had non-cash (i) additions to RER - AEE()REFHEELH
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,216,000 and DRIBEEEAEEERHEAGBHNIE
HK$2,216,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements &2 HN2,216,0007 7T 12 2,216,000/
for buildings (2021: HK$10,685,000, respectively). T(ZZEZ—% : 551/310,685,0007%
JT) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RETBELEMEEES
activities
Other payables in relation
Bank borrowings Lease liabilities to financing activities
RITER HEAE FEREEBNEMENTE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CfF -E--% CZE--F CZE--§5 ZE--E CZZ--fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhr TiEn FhR TATL TR Fi5n
At 1 January »—A—H 36,693 34930 11,675 6,712 9,601 9,601
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BIEF&REE (8,159) 6,022 (6,771) 6,910) - -
New leases nHE - - 2,216 10,685 - -
Covid-19-related rent concessions  HCovid-194#4)
from lessors ERER - - - - - -
Termination of leases RIS = - = - = -
Interest expense FlERx - - 578 661 - -
Reclassification ENRE - (5,225) - - - -
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExZHTLEH
changes, net (2,787) 966 (699) 527 (556) -
At 31 December Wt=R=1+-H 25,747 36,693 6,999 11,675 9,045 9,601
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35.

36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. FEREREKRME(HE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEABESARH
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of FFARESRERMNEEER ML
cash flows is as follows: e
2022 2021
—E-C—F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAxT
Within operating activities REEHA 2,662 2,771
Within financing activities BEEBA 6,771 6,910
9,433 9,681
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. AREE
The Group has contingent liabilities up to RMB28,000,000 REEGE T AL —HBE QR 2R
(equivalent to approximately HK$31,344,000) as a guarantor for BEEAERA BEXABEREZA
the bank facility granted to an associate of the Company (31 R # 28,000,000 7T (48 & 7 #931,344,0007%
December 2021: RMB28,000,000 (equivalent to approximately T ZZE-_—F+_A=+—"H: AR¥
HK$34,247,000)). 28,000,0007T (FHE 72 4734,247,00077T) ) ©
As at 31 December 2022, the associate has utilised bank loans RZBE-_—F+-A=+—H " ZBEQ
of approximately RMB26,422,000 (equivalent to approximately AEBAAAEBRHERNBRITERLY
HK$29,578,000) which is guaranteed by the Group (31 December AR H26,422,0007T (8E 7 #129,578,0007%8
2021: approximately RMB26,386,000 (equivalent to approximately TN ZZE-_—F+-A=1+—H: HARE
HK$32,273,000)). 26,386,0007T (1HE 7 4932,273,00087T))
Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant contingent BEXEEEIN RZE=-=_F+=A
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil). =t+—H AEETESEAFAEBGE(ZZ
)
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. EEER

Details of the Group's bank loans, which are secured by the assets
of the Group, are included in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AREZRTESFB(HAREZEER
R BRERE P TS MR M 128 o

£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

175



Notes to Financial Statements ® B 753k < MI5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

38. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

38. &iE

REBNRERRENTEARALE

2022 2021
—E-= B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EETHVE AR -
Land and buildings T RiEF 67,984 61,786
Properties under development ey 22,492 23,076
90,476 84,862
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BHAEXRS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEBFEEBEABS :

2022 2021
—B-=F —FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Short term employee benefits % HifE B2 A 159 117
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAREYER 1,228 1,227

Total compensation paid to key management [ ZEEIE A B X R4
personnel 1,387 1,344

BREZENTETRABNE 2 E—FFE
N A M IRERIEES

Further details of directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RER&s2EMIA
RARERR - SEFem T B BREED
T

Financial assets cREE
2022 —EC-CF
Financial assets
at fair value Financial
through assets at
profit or loss fair value Financial
mandatorily  through other assets at
designated comprehensive amortised
as such income cost Total
Bt
EEhERBE BBHEM2E
UATESE  WEAATE REBHERA
ZEREE JIRCERER EMEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER TR TR
Equity investments at fair value through ~ EBE M Z2ANEAATE
other comprehensive income Rk R A - 246,737 - 246,737
Trade receivables JEW B 553 = = 18,655 18,655
Financial assets included in prepayments, &t ATBFUE « EftEUGIE
other receivables and other assets LREAMEE, eRARE - - 290,569 290,569
Financial assets at fair value through ERBERARTESE S8
profit or loss BE 247,038 - - 247,038
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEEY - - 193,726 193,726
247,038 246,737 502,950 996,725
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
RS
STENEMARs et
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trade payables JERTE 5 ERR 21,745 21,745
Financial liabilities included in other payables &FTAEMESFIBNRETER 2
and accruals TRIAE 41,241 41,241
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERRITIER 25,747 25,747
Lease liabilities HEERE 6,999 6,999
95,732 95,732
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. RERHE S 2RI R(E)
(continued)
Financial assets SREE
2021 —T-—fF
Financial assets
at fair value Financial
through assets at
profit or loss fair value Financial
mandatorily  through other assets at
designated  comprehensive amortised
as such income cost Total
Egjallig
EERBERERE FBAMZE
NATEIR,  BEARTE R SR
SREE B EREE HENSREE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FET TET
Equity investments at fair value through ~ EBE (2 E G ATFE
other comprehensive income S8R BRI E - 323,881 - 323,881
Debt investment at fair value through BREMEEKENATE
other comprehensive income 58 BRIRE - 40,331 - 40,331
Trade receivables [EUE SRS - - 34,799 34,799
Financial assets included in prepayments, &t ATBRFUE » EfhEUGIE
other receivables and other assets REMEBEE SRHEE - - 320,518 320,518
Financial assets at fair value through BRBRARTETIR 28/
profit or loss BE 253,169 - - 253,169
Restricted bank balance R HIR TS - - 3,994 3,994
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREZSEY - - 239,136 239,136
253,169 364,212 598,447 1,215,828
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
REHR AR
AENEREE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Trade payables FERTE SRR 46,424 46,424
Financial liabilities included in other payables T AEABFES FRIE R ETER 2
and accruals TREE 43,914 43,914
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITIER 36,693 36,693
Lease liabilities HEEE 11,675 11,675
138,706 138,706
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

41.

ERMTACZAFERAFERER

AEENERIA(TEEZSEIERD
HEABREE) ZREERDTAESIRN
T~

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AVE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EBC-CE —E-—F —EBoCE —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET TERT T
Financial assets EREE
Equity investments designated at fair EERBBEM D EE N
value through other comprehensive AHEIR ERRE
income 246,737 323,881 246,737 323,881
Debt investment at fair value through FREMEAREARTE
other comprehensive income SiR e EHERE - 40,331 - 40,331
Financial assets at fair value through ERBERARNTEIER 28
profit or loss BE 247,038 253,169 247,038 253,169
493,775 617,381 493,775 617,381

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, trade receivables, an amount
due from a related party, trade payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial
liabilities included other payables and accruals and interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial
officer is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer.

EEEDHERELREFHEY  XRHIER
11468 - BB SR - BR—RBETT R
B ENESER - SEARNTUR - At
WA M A EENSRERE - fARME
NFIANER B AN SR B EA NG RIRT
ERNAHERAREERS  T2RER
ZET AN HEHRE -

AEESHHREENHERE  HRARER
EERTANRHEAENBERIER - R
smE R WEHAMERTANERE
B WREMEBERANIERAE - BFEH
BEERLMGE -
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. ERMIAZAFERAFEER

180

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of the fund investments
are based on quotations provided by the relevant institutions. The
fair values of derivative instruments are estimated using Black-
Scholes model with the underlying equity value determined under
the market approach. The Black-Scholes model incorporates
various inputs including risk-free interest rate, volatilities and
dividends yield. The fair value of an unlisted equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
is based on the carrying amounts of monetary assets/liabilities
held by that unlisted equity investment. The fair values of other
unlisted equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income or through profit or loss have been
estimated using a market approach based on assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors of the Company to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as the price
to book value (“P/B") multiple or price to earning (“P/E"), for
each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated
by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by
an asset measure or by an earning measure, respectively. The
valuation is then discounted for considerations such as lack of
marketability of the target companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The directors of the Company believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.
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41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative

sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

SR it

SRMIAZAFERAFEER
(%&)
WTARZE-_—_FR-_ZE-_—F+=-A
— T AN I A AT ERRES

MHEATABRBAEHRE

Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair
technique input Range value to the input
EXRT
R R M BEmAE R ATEHGABZHRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/S 2022:7.6433 5% (31 December 2021: 5%) increase/
investments multiples (2021: P/B) (2021:1.7240 to decrease in multiple would result in
FELTERRE ERE multiple of 6.6567) increase/decrease in fair value by
peers TR TF 17,6433 HK$588,000 (2021: HK$1,042,000 to
R (ZZ=—F 117240 HK$4,026,000)
MHE(ZT -~ F6.6567) A THS%(ZE=—F+=f
F o TRE)EH =+—H : 5%)BEHA FELM R
4588,000/8 7T (= =—4F : 1,042,000
7T 24,026,000/ 7T)
Discount for lack ~ 2022: 34% 1% (2021: 1%) increase/decrease in
of marketability (2021: 32% to 34%) discount would result in decrease/
Rz st :%::i : 34% increase in fair value by HK$178,000
ik (ZTZ—F:32%%  (2021: HK$316,000 to HK$1,184,000)
34%) & LA THRI%(ZZZ—F : 1%)1

BHNFERD/H0178,0008 7T
£ 1 316,000 T2 1,184,000

(=%=—

/%71)
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &3 = M5
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. SRTRAZAFERLAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy NFERER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRHAPRERZEMTAZ AT EAEE
of the Group's financial instruments: -
Assets measured at fair value MR FEFEZ BE
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-=ZH+=ZHA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERATBABEZATFEE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EDN EWN
SRR IS THRE FUBRE
HE BAE BAE
(B-%) (B=8) (B=8) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT THERT FET
Equity investments designated at fair EEARBBEMZENE N
value through other comprehensive AVHEIR ERRE
income 42,430 190,896 13,411 246,737
Financial assets at fair value through BRBRURTETR 28/
profit or loss BE 10,531 220,739 15,768 247,038
52,961 411,635 29,179 493,775
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73 2% M 5+
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

41. SRMIBEZAFERAFEER

(&)

AFEEHR(E)
KR FEFEZ EEE)
WZZE-——F+=-R=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERANTEAEZ A TEFE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EWN EWN
EEMS AR TR
WE BAE BAR
(B-8) (B=#) (=) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET
Equity investments designated at fair EEARBBEM AN
value through other comprehensive AHEIR ERRE
income 40,619 195,189 88,073 323,881
Debt investment at fair value through BREMEEKENATE
other comprehensive income 582 BREIRE 40,331 - - 40,331
Financial assets at fair value through BRBERARTETIR 28/
profit or loss BE 5,948 224,614 22,607 253,169
86,898 419,803 110,680 617,381
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73 2% M 5+
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during

the year are as follows:

(%)
DFEER ()
AR FEFEZEEH)

ETRMTACZAFERAFERER

RER  F=RAFEFENESHNT

2022 2021
—E-CF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Equity investments at fair value through FREMEEEEANFEIRZ
other comprehensive income ERRE
At 1 January n—H—H 88,073 74,150
Total gains recognised in other REMEE R 2 Bl
comprehensive income - 11,566
Deemed disposal upon deconsolidation of a  —HMiE A BT EERE ABRRR/E
subsidiary L& (75,166) -
Exchange realignment P& A% 504 2,357
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 13,411 88,073
2022 2021
—B-=F —FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Equity investments at fair value through FRERUATAEYR ERIRE
profit or loss
At 1 January m—H—H 22,607 19,744
Total gains recognised in profit or loss B iR Bl (3,927) 2,239
Disposal HE (1,094) -
Exchange realignment HEE 34, e B (1,818) 624
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 15,768 22,607
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &3 = M5
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. ERMIAZAFERAFERER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EEH(E)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed WENFEZEE

As at 31 December 2022

R-ZB-_=—F+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERATBABEZATFEE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EX EX

EREMS TBE FAEE

ZBE BAE BAE
(%) (BF=&) (B=H) a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TR TER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITER = 25,747 = 25,747

As at 31 December 2021

WZZE-_—F+=-RA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERANTEAEZ A TEFE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EWN BX

RS HE AR

8B BAE BAE
(B-4) (B=H) (=) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR AR TAT FET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RRITER - 36,693 - 36,693
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. BEREEHERBEK

186

AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, trade receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income, a
debt investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
and deposits and other receivables, which arise directly from its
operations. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, lease liabilities and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk
The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and most of the
transactions are conducted in RMB.

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily
related to bank balances, other receivables, investments in joint
ventures and financial assets denominated in CAD and USD. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
It manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movements in the foreign currency rates.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

AEEEREETIRERERARZENS
ZHReRREFEY  ZXBRFIRITELR &
WE RN - BRERANTEIIRZE/
BE  BEAEBEMEEKENATET
fRzEmIE - BREMEEKEANFE
JIRR 2 BRI A A RiRE R E A YRR -
AEECRAEEIZERENESERN
ENFANETER - HERBUNRAE
RITREK

AEEMBTAZ T ZRARAINERR - 15
ERBERBESER - EFGRNALGE
ERNFRBRZBR - AT -

S B
AEEREBERPEEARHLTIAAR
T -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in CAD and USD
exchange rates (against HK$), with all other variables held constant,
the Group's loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets).

42. BEREREE 2 HERBEK(E)

SN LR (1)

TR AR S SR AR E 2 BB R
RN BT R G870 ) A R RER
R 2 AT ER BT AR 2 8
POBLRYE - AT EAb A R RS T -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in loss
in CAD rate before tax
hncE=R RREL AT 18
FHE(B2fE) 2,/ (Bd)
% HK$'000
FET
2022 —E_——F
If the HK$ weakens against the CAD B 7T ATz B 5 (13,147)
If the HK$ strengthens against the CAD W& T T HHE (5) 13,147
If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT R E 5 (5,851)
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD W& HETTHHE (5) 5,851
2021 —T=-—fF
If the HK$ weakens against the CAD i T3 oz E 5 (13,441)
If the HK$ strengthens against the CAD 87T N HHE (5) 13,441
If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT R ETTEE 5 (6,890)
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD /BT H T HE (5) 6,890

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

ERmR
FERERENGE R R ER Y E=
TR5 - EARBZRET  EIRHEES
TR EREEE - HARENATER
AR TEA -

EE R ERER
TREIRBEAEEEEBRL ERENE
HIER (FRIFE BRI BAMN B S R AL
ZHAAES BEENEEERRTRSAR
BN+ ZA=+—HHFEREEDE - AT
ERNERATRHEENRREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B 753k < MI5T

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

42. BEREE B ERBEKGE)

B 1o L B e 5 R P R (4R

R-ZB-_=—F+=-HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 AR
FEER 2HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—PR FoRR E= L % st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THER TR THET
Trade receivables* RN E Z R = = = 24,601 24,601
Financial assets included in FHATERFUE - Efth
prepayments, other receivables  FEFIE R H &
and other assets EZeREE
— Normal** —[EE* 290,569 - - - 290,569
- Doubtful** —TREE* - - 47,835 - 47,835
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeSHEY
- Not yet past due — AR 193,726 = = = 193,726
484,295 - 47,835 24,601 556,731
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

42. BEREREE 2 HERBEK(E)

BeEEEERKER(E)
WZZE-——F+=-R=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 8
EEBE T HEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—REER EER E=MR A% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* FEUE 5 BR R - - - 37,371 37,371
Financial assets included in SHATERIFUE - Efth
prepayments, other receivables  JEUGIE KA
and other assets BEZCMEE
— Normal** —IEE* 320,518 - - - 320,518
- Doubtful** —TERE - 15,000 29,192 - 44,192
Restricted bank balances ZIREIRITA R
— Not yet past due — AR 3,994 - - - 3,994
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHEY
— Not yet past due — AR 239,136 - - - 239,136
563,648 15,000 29,192 37,371 645,211

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful .

Further qualitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables and financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
are disclosed in notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

* RAKEEAMESETERENERE S
BRRME - ERBEEENERNGE I
RARMI T2 E o

= fERFATENFOR - R EEGAR A E E
MEMEETEDRANTEENERERME
EMERRR B IIAREREAR L - HE
BEHZBHAR/IER] - B SREEMN
EEERRREAIFRRE]

ERAEERGTATENZE - HthERFIE
REMEENRKE SRR LSHEENE
RHEERR 2 E— P2 (LBBRGRE I
KM T2 8 231 EE -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B 7R &X K
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through bank borrowings and
shareholder.

The maturity profile of the Group's as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

]li}!{l/

42.

B EREE 2 BERBER ()

AEEBBEREEERSES RS TAE
ZESERNEAR  ARTAEEESRT
ANEeMEENIIHA - REEMSHTER
Bene -

AEEH B W ABEBRTETARBRER
BB RER N T -

AREBPNATRE PRBIED FTARIR K
AHEMEIEIERAT

follows:
2022
—E-CF

On demand

or within
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
—FR —ZHF #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FTHER FHET
Trade payables FERTE SRR 21,745 = 21,745

Financial liabilities included in other & A ERFIER

payables TRAE 41,241 - 41,241
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T B IRTTER 26,307 - 26,307
Lease liabilities HERE 5,451 1,815 7,266
94,744 1,815 96,559

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42.
AND POLICIES (continued)

B EREE 2 BERBER ()

Liquidity risk (continued) RENE SRk (E)
2021
T4
On demand
or within
1 year 1to 5years Total
BEK
—&p —EHE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET
Trade payables JEE SR 46,424 - 46,424
Financial liabilities included in other &t AE b fE FIEAY
payables EaA =N 43914 - 43,914
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITER 36,766 - 36,766
Lease liabilities HEaRE 7,038 5,360 12,398
134,142 5,360 139,502
Capital management EXREE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and

REBETEREENEERBARERE
BIRESTRHERL S IR IR B AL R IAS

to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business HEBERRSBRREBERAKI
and maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REEIRIRECBEAR R F B RAREE ES R

to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

BEYEREEEARBETHEELRAE - A
HEAE Sk AR A AN - REE T B MR
RIRMNHRE - MR ERIREE AN BITHAR
7 o AEEBAEZERINEBERERIRPR o
REBEZTZZF+A=+—HRZZE
T—FE+Z A=+ —HILEFE  BAEEHN
BiZ - BURSUIR P E(E T sk -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 202 &2 —EZ - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-
bearing bank borrowings and other divided by total equity. The

MBRRE
EXEE(H)

BzBBERBKGE)

AEEFEAEERBLEAIGERRITRE

S FRER A B RE2S )

ERER - AEEEK

Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio as low as possible. FRARERPBRFENEEEBLEX - EWE
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as HRMEEAGBLEHIIMT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 28) BRI TER(FIEE28) 25,747 36,693
Total equity s 2,143,660 2,496,619
Gearing ratio BEARBLE 1.2% 1.5%
43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. HEHREH

On 22 February 2023, the Group subscribed structured deposit
with an aggregate amount of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$57,000,000) issued by Xiamen International Bank
Co., Limited. The structured deposit is principal-guaranteed with
variable return linked to EUR/USD rate, and will become mature on
21 August 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there are no significant events
subsequent to 31 December 2022 which may materially affect the
Group's operating and financial performance as of the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.

BEIJING HEALTH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1t 2B () ERA R

R-ZT-_ZF—-_A=-+=-H AEBEREH
EFIBBRIRITRD AR AR BEITABARKE
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 73R M5t
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E —E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. RN TF 2 BBEAARRE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the R EBRB BARRRBMBARRK 2 E R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: U
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Right-of-use assets REEE 1,819 1,116
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZERE 5,143 5,143
Investment in an associate R—EBE R a2 ®E 55,576 77,164
Investments in joint ventures NEERNTIZKE 81,027 96,988
Equity investments designated at fair value 8 AFEBEM 2 E KA A TE
through other comprehensive income PR B E 127,241 139,730
Total non-current assets FEREEERE 270,806 320,141
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries =N E R 1,916,362 1,995,479
Financial assets at fair value through FRBRUATEINRCERERE
profit or loss 7,234 7,147
Prepayments, other receivables and other TARTRIE - EAbREYRIE K
assets Hip&E 1,091 1,671
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 2,232 6,120
Total current assets MEEERE 1,926,919 2,010,417
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals o fE AT ROE N FEET B A 5,878 5,722
Lease liabilities HEAE 722 715
Total current liabilities MEBERTE 6,600 6,437
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,920,319 2,003,980
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 2,191,125 2,324,121
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,226 530
Total non-current liabilities B EEETE 1,226 530
Net assets BEEFE 2,189,899 2,323,591
EQUITY s
Share capital A& A 1,211,754 1,215,789
Reserves (note) (M) 978,145 1,107,802
Total equity B 2,189,899 2,323,591
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—ZFE - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

44. RDQTF) 2 HBARIREK(E)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: B & -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RARZ EEHEET
Fair value
reserve
of financial
assets at
fair value
Share Exchange through other
premium  Share option Merger  fluctuation Capital ~comprehensive ~Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve reserve income losses Total
2EKE
DRFESIR
ZEREEN
RiVEER  BRERE AiRE EXRBRE ERfRfE DT{ERE ZithiE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FEL TEL FEL TAL TEL TAL
Balance 1 January 2021 RZZ--F-A-Bz&H 1,771,142 98,514 (200) (669) 9,111 (7.812) (784,235) 1,085,851
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - 24,418 24,418
Other comprehensive income/ FREMZERE/(K8) :
(loss) for the year:
Share of other comprehensive loss A —fBE R 2 Efn
of an associate EER - - - (1,741) - - - (1,741
Share of other comprehensive loss i —HAERE 2 Ef
of ajoint venture 2EFB - - - (8,218) - - - (8218)
Changes in fair value of equity BEARBRMZEEN
investments designated DB BEREZ
at fair value through other AFEES
comprehensive income - - - - - 7,467 - 7,467
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2TEEEE - - - (9.959) - 7,461 24418 21926
Share of reserves of associates AEBEDERE - - - - 2 - - 2
Balance at 31 December 2021and ~ R=ZF=—4+=fA=+—H
1 January 2022 RZF-ZF-A-Hz
el 1,771,142 98,514 (200) (10,628) 9,136 (345) (759,817) 1,107,802
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - (116,693) (116,693)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMZERE/(E8) :
(loss) for the year:
Share of other comprehensive loss ~ AME—FEE R 2 Ef
of an associate 2EEE - = - (3,395) = = = (3,395)
Share of other comprehensive AME-FAEREZEM
income of a joint venture FENE - - - 1,412 - - = 1,412
Share cancellation PORE 2,115 = = = = = = 2,115
Changes in fair value of equity BEARBLM 2 BN
investments designated NTEFR BERE 2
at fair value through other AFES
comprehensive income - - - - - (12,330) = (12,330)
Transfer of share option reserve RERER NS ERRE
upon the forfeiture or expiry of BERERE
share option - (6,221) - - - - 6,221 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2EBRARE 2,115 (6,221) - (1,983) - (12330)  (110472)  (128,891)
Share of reserves of associates HEBEDAEE = = = = (766) = = (766)
At 31 December 2022 RoB--F+-A=1-H 1,773,257 92,293 (200) (12,611) 8,370 (12,675) (870,289) 978,145
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45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. BEWmR 2 AL
The consolidated financial statements were approved and REMBRRERZE=F=-"A=1TH%E

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023. ERGHE R -
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Particulars of Properties

S Year

ended 31 December 202 H#E —ZE - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REW=
Percentage of interest
Location Use Tenure attributable to the Group
2 B B AEEEENEEE L
No. 2518 and No. 2538, Dongchuan Road, Minhang District, Retail and car parking Medium-term lease 100%
Shanghai, China spaces
H B BRI R 155251855 F125385 DEREEN hHEE
No. 2-16, Lane 480 Ruili Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, Retail Medium-term lease 100%
China
Bl e RTR B IR4805% 2-16%; zE FHERE
No. 1401-1405, 14/F and No. 1701-1702, 17/F, Office Medium-term lease 100%
Building No. 1, No. 3 Boda Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, China
PR R B ARA 3N 1 52 1478 140158 E14055% A PEEE
RITE170152 217025%
Unit No. 1902, No. 22 Alley 698 Xin Zhu Road, Residential Medium-term lease 100%
Minhang District, Shanghai, China
P E LBRITTRERMKE98F 23 1902F e PEEE
Unit BT on 11th Floor, NCB Innovation Centre, Office Property for rent 100%
No. 888 Lai Chi Kok Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRENEAN AL REHLBAF T O1ERE WA MESLE
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT X 2ES
Expected Attributable
Gross  Stage of completion interest of
Location Use Site area floor area  completion date the Group
2 B WEER BEEEE RIRR BHRTEH rEBELES
(sq.m.) (sgq.m.)
(FHxK) (F7%K)
Center District, Haidong, Commercial 275,000 N/A  Property under N/A 60%
Dali, China development
hEABERDOE ki TER  ERDE Gl
No. 1699, Hongmei South Road, ~ Commercial 39,448 N/A  Property under N/A 100%
Minhang District, Shanghai development
HBRIfTEAER 16995 i TER  ERDE TEm
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